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April 12, 2005
To Our Shareholders

In 2004, Harbor Global Co., Ltd achieved all elements set forth in its yearly Business Plan. As of 1 January 2005,
your company retains its Russian asset management operations, PIOGlobal Asset Management, its 52% interest
in the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund as well as minority holdings in each of Russia and Poland.

Our Russian asset management business grew considerably during the year through the development of a number
of distribution channels for its retail unit funds as well as the development of an institutional sales force to
compete in the acquisition of non state pension funds and assets of high net worth individuals and companies in
our managed portfolios. Including the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund, total assets under
management at 31 December, 2004 exceeded $200 million.

During the year, Ashanti completely discharged its obligations to Harbor Global on account of its acquisition of
Teberebic Gold Fields.

Consistent with our charter to return the maximum amount available from asset operations and: sales to our
shareholders, we distributed $.69 per share to our shareholders in November of 2004. With this payment, the total
net distributions to Harbor Global shareholders from inception have been $5.30 per share.

Our business plan for 2005 continues our efforts to maximize asset values and to monetize these assets when
appropriate. The company expects to continue to distribute proceeds into the future.

Sincerely,

Stephen G. Kasnet
President
Chief Executive Officer
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PARTI

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.

OVERVIEW

Harbor Global Company Ltd., a Bermuda limited duration company (“Harbor Global” or the “Company”),
was formed in May 2000 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Pioneer Investment Management USA Inc. (formerly
known as The Pioneer Group, Inc.), a Delaware corporation (“Pioneer”), to facilitate the merger between Pioneer
and UniCredito Italiano, S.p.A., an Italian financial institution (“UniCredito™). As a condition to closing the
merger and pursuant to a Distribution Agreement dated as of October 24, 2000 by and among the Company,
Pioneer and Harbor Global I Ltd. (“Harbor Global IT”’), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the
“Distribution Agreement”), Pioneer agreed to transfer certain of its assets to Harbor Global and distribute all of
the outstanding Harbor Global common shares to its stockholders. Pioneer transferred to Harbor Global all of the
assets required to be transferred pursuant to the merger agreement and the Distribution Agreement, and on
October 24, 2000, Pioneer distributed all of the outstanding common shares of Harbor Global to its stockholders
(the “Spin-off”). Pioneer stockholders received one Harbor Global common share for every five shares of
Pioneer common stock held on that date.

The Company’s primary assets as of December 31, 2004 by segment consist of the following:

* Russian Real Estate Management and Investment Management Operations: investment advisory and
management services

* Real Estate Management Operations: real estate management services, including property management
and advisory services

e Other:

— approximately $9.4 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held directly by
Harbor Global

— an approximately 8% limited partnership interest in the Prospect Poland Fund

Financial information by segment and geographic area for each of the business segments can be found in
Note 17 to the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report. In addition, information
regarding the revenues of each business segment can be found in Item 7—*Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Additional information regarding each business
segment and Harbor Global in general is set forth below.

Harbor Global seeks to liquidate its assets in a timely fashion on economically advantageous terms and
continues to operate its assets as going concern businesses until they are liquidated. Harbor Global’s
memorandum of association dated May 22, 2000 provides that the liquidation of its assets must be completed
upon the earlier of October 24, 2005, the fifth anniversary of the date of the Spin-off, or the distribution by
Harbor Global of all its assets to its shareholders. On October 18, 2004, pursuant to the Company’s memorandum
of association, the Harbor Global board of directors (“Board of Directors”) unanimously authorized the Company
to continue operating its assets for an additional one year period or through October 24, 2006, unless and until the
Company has distributed all of its assets to its shareholders to the extent permitted by the Bermuda Companies
Act of 1981. If Harbor Global has not liquidated all of its assets before October 24, 2006, the Board of Directors,
in its discretion, may authorize Harbor Global to continue to operate its assets for up to two additional one-year
periods.

Harbor Global owns and operates all of its assets through Harbor Global II. Harbor Global owns 99% of the
share capital of Harbor Global II, and HGC Ltd. (“HGC”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Harbor Global, owns
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the remaining 1% of the share capital of Harbor Global II. Some of Harbor Global’s assets are held directly by
Harbor Global II, and some assets are held indirectly by Harbor Global Il through HGCL Ltd. (“HGCL"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Harbor Global II. Harbor Global II, HGCL and HGC are Bermuda limited duration
companies, and under their memorandums of association, each will liquidate concurrently with the liquidation of
Harbor Global.

Stephen G. Kasnet is the President and Chief Executive Officer, and Donald H. Hunter is the Chief
Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of Harbor Global. Mr. Kasnet was formerly the President, and Mr.
Hunter was formerly the Chief Operating Officer and Senior Vice President, of Pioneer Global Investments, a
division of Pioneer. As officers of Pioneer Global Investments, Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter operated substantially
all of the businesses that are now owned or operated by Harbor Global. Calypso Management LLC (“Calypso
Management”), an entity owned and operated by Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, manages the liquidation of Harbor
Global and operates Harbor Global’s assets pending their liquidation pursuant to the terms of an administration
and liquidation agreement entered into prior to the Spin-off and amended and restated as of July 10, 2003, Mr.
Kasnet is the President and Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Hunter is the Chief Operatmg Ofﬁcer Chief
Financial Officer and Treasurer, of Calypso Management.

Because Harbor Global’s assets are primarily located in the Russian Federation (“Russia”), a country in
which successfully operating and selling businesses requires significant experience, Harbor Global believes that
its success in liquidating its assets and operating its assets pending their liquidation will depend to a significant
extent upon the continued efforts of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter. In order to induce Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter to
become officers of Harbor Global and manage its liquidation, Harbor Global agreed to allocate a portion of the
net proceeds distributed in connection with the liquidation of Harbor Global’s assets to Mr. Kasnet and Mr.
Hunter. Calypso Management was created, in large part, to provide a vehicle for Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter to
allocate the compensation they receive among themselves and other employees of Calypso Management who
provide assistance in connection with the administration and liquidation of Harbor Global’s assets.

Harbor Global pays the operating expenses of Calypso Management, and in general, as compensation for
Calypso Management’s services, Calypso Management receives a portion of the net proceeds distributed from
the liguidation of Harbor Global’s assets. In addition, in the event 80% of the Company’s common shares are
sold or if the Company’s shareholders immediately prior to a business combination or transaction cease to own at
least 50% of the outstanding common shares and voting power entitled to vote generally in the election of
directors following such combination or transaction (referred to as a “deemed sale™), Calypso Management is
entitled to receive a portion of the consideration as would be received by all shareholders if all of the outstanding
common shares were sold at the valuation of Harbor Global based on the per share consideration received by
each shareholder who sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of shares in the transaction. Also, in the event of a
change in control (as defined in the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement) coupled
with a material change in the engagement status of Calypso Management or the employment status of its
principal officers, Calypso Management will be paid a cash amount equal to a portion of the value of the
underlying assets with such value determined pursuant to a predetermined valuation schedule. As discussed in
Ttem 13—“Certain Relationships and Related Transactions,” compensation to Calypso Management represents a
percentage of such distributions or deemed distributions, which varies depending upon the source of the
distribution and the cumulative amount of distributions since the Spin-off. Harbor Global does not believe that
the terms of the amended and restated administrative and liquidation agreement negotiated with Calypso
Management are more favorable than the terms, if any, on which Harbor Global could have negotiated a similar
arrangement with an unaffiliated third party.

Harbor Global conducts business primarily in Russia. For the year ended December 31, 2004, all of Harbor
Global’s revenues were derived from operations in Russia. Harbor Global’s businesses and assets are described
below, together with the principal strategies that Harbor Global currently intends to employ to sell or liquidate its
assets.




RUSSIAN REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT AND INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Structure of Operations. Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management
operations are conducted through its wholly owned subsidiary, Pioglobal Omega, L.L.C. (“Pioglobal Omega”),
and in turn, Pioglobal Omega operates through its 92% owned subsidiary, Pioglobal First Russia, LLC (formerly,
Pioglobal First Russia, Inc.) (“Pioglobal First Russia™). Prior to December 18, 2002, Pioglobal Omega owned an
81.65% interest in Pioglobal First Russia, and the International Finance Corporation, a member of the World
Bank Group (the “IFC”), owned an 18.35% interest in Pioglobal First Russia. On December 18, 2002, Pioglobal
Omega acquired the IFC’s 18.35% minority interest in Pioglobal First Russia.

Pioglobal First Russia operates through two subsidiaries, Closed Joint-Stock Company “PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management” (“PIOGLOBAL Asset Management”), an investment management company, and Closed Joint-
Stock Company “PIOGLOBAL Services”, an information technology services company (“PIOGLOBAL
Services”). Both PIOGLOBAL Asset Management and PIOGLOBAL Services are Russian joint stock companies.

In addition, Pioglobal Omega, through its two wholly owned Delaware subsidiaries, Luscinia, L.L.C. and
Theta Enterprises, L.L.C., holds an approximately 52% interest in Open Joint-Stock Company “PIOGLOBAL
Real Estate Investment Fund” (“PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund”), a Russian joint-stock company
managed by PIOGLOBAL Asset Management. Currently, approximately 2.1 million Russian stockholders hold
the remaining approximately 48% interest in PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund.

Minority Unit Holders in Pioglobal First Russia. Effective September 24, 2003, Pioglobal First Russia
awarded restricted units in an aggregate amount equivalent to ten percent of the issued and outstanding units of
Pioglobal First Russia to two officers of PIOGLOBAL Asset Management. Each officer was fully vested with
respect to the award. On April 15, 2004, Pioglobal First Russia repurchased all of the membership interest of one
of the officers who resigned from PIOGLOBAL Asset Management for $308,500.

Effective May 19, 2004, Pioglobal First Russia granted restricted units in Pioglobal First Russia to three
officers of PIOGLOBAL Asset Management. Under the unit agreements, Pioglobal First Russia awarded, at no
cost to the officers, an aggregate number of units equivalent to approximately 4% of the issued and outstanding
units of Pioglobal First Russia, on a fully diluted basis. Upon the full vesting of these awards, the Company will
continue to own approximately 91% of the outstanding units in Pioglobal First Russia. Such units are required to
be issued over a period of three years beginning on May 19, 2004 and ending on December 31, 2006, according
to the schedules set forth in the respective unit agreements, if the respective officer continues to be employed by
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management as a full-time employee. As of December 31, 2004, 3% of the issued and
outstanding units had fully vested.

The fair value of the units issued during 2003 and 2004 were calculated using the valuation services of an
independent third party as of December 31, 2004. Accordingly, Pioglobal First Russia recorded compensation
expense of approximately $169,000 in connection with the valuation of the restricted unit awards. This amount is
included in salary and benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund. PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund is Harbor
Global’s principal asset. PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund invests directly in real estate and to a lesser
extent, securities of Russian companies. A significant portion of the assets of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund consists of its ownership of the Meridian Commercial Tower, an 18-story, 20,707 square meter
office building in Moscow, Russia. The Meridian Commercial Tower, primarily occupied by United States and
European corporate tenants or their Russian subsidiaries, is managed by PREA, L.L.C. (“PREA”), Harbor
Global’s real estate management subsidiary. PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund has agreed to pay PREA
a property management fee of 5% of gross revenues less any value-added taxes or similar taxes.

PREA leases the Meridian Commercial Tower from PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund under a
master lease agreement and in turn, subleases the premises to tenants. PREA pays PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
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Investment Fund an amount equal to gross revenues less building operating expenses, the PREA property
management fee described above and any value added taxes or similar taxes. The master lease agreement
between PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund and PREA expires on September 5, 2043.

PIOGLOBAL Asset Management. Under a management agreement between PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management and PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund, PIOGLOBAL Asset Management provides
portfolio management services to PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund for an annual fee of 5% of all
assets owned by PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund net of any value added taxes or similar taxes.

PIOGLOBAL Asset Management also serves as an investment manager to three Russian open-end unit
investment funds, an index interval fund and an institutional interval fund. As compensation for its investment
management services, PFIOGLOBAL Asset Management receives annual management fees ranging between one-
half of a percent and three percent after value added taxes of the net asset value of the unit funds. In addition,
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management provides trust management services to institutional and high net worth clients
for which it typically receives a quarterly management fee based on trust assets under management and a
performance based fee. Relatively favorable market conditions coupled with staffing improvements in the
institutional sales force, the development of broader and more sophisticated distribution channels, and
improvements in customer service have contributed to increases in assets under management. Assets under
management at December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 for unit funds, interval funds and trust management accounts
are set forth on the following table:

December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(In Millions)
Openend UnitFunds ...ttt $ 61.3 $262 $13.1
Interval Funds . .......................... e e 5.8 49 —
Trust Management ..............cciiiuniiiriirin s 543  26.0 4.7
Assets under Management .. ..........veeernerrnnerrnrenneannns $121.4 $57.1 $17.8

As of October 8, 2003, PIOGLOBAL Asset Management became one of 55 private asset management
companies eligible to manage assets of the State Pension Fund of Russia. In 2004, PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management received State Pension Fund assets of $0.6 million, which represented approximately 0.6% of the
total assets transferred to private managers based upon elections made by eligible pension participants in 2003.
During the fourth quarter of 2004, PIOGLOBAL Asset Management was again elected as a private asset manager
to manage assets of the State Pension Fund of Russia during 2005. As a result, PIOGLOBAL Asset Management
expects to receive additional assets to manage in 2005 from pension participants.

PIOGLOBAL Services. PIOGLOBAL Services provides information technology services to PIOGLOBAL
Real Estate Investment Fund and the unit funds managed by PIOGLOBAL Asset Management for an annual fee
of approximately $399,000. In 2004, PIOGLOBAL Services’ operations were supported solely by this fee.

In 2004, 2003, and 2002, Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management
operations reported revenues and net income (loss) from continuing operations as shown in the table below:

2004 2003 2002

. (In Millions)
REVEIUES . ..ottt ittt e et e e e $11.3 $9.1 $8.6
Net (Loss) INcome . .. ... vt i i ettt $3.6) $59 $(0.1)

In 2004, revenues from the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund comprised approximately 73% of
Harbor Global’s total revenue. Furthermore, Meridian Commercial Tower lease revenues accounted for
approximately 88% of the revenues of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund and approximately 71% of the
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total revenue generated by Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management
operations in 2004. Harbor Global believes that a loss of one or a few tenants of the Meridian Commercial Tower
would not have a material adverse effect on this segment. The Company maintains comprehensive property
insurance covering the full replacement cost of the building, value added taxes incurred during any
reconstruction and up to three years of lost rental revenue during any reconstruction period. Harbor Global does
not maintain political risk insurance for the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund or any of its businesses.

Asset Realization Strategy. PIOGLOBAL Asset Management continues to seek to increase the value of the
PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund through a process of restructuring the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund portfolio by:

— selling securities which are considered illiquid;

— increasing the value of its real estate holdings;

— establishing a consistent dividend policy

— investing in real estate and in more liquid securities; and

— actively managing the fixed income and equity securities portfolio.

PIOGLOBAL Asset Management continues to seek to increase assets under management for the unit
investment funds and interval funds it manages and its institutional trust management business. PPFOGLOBAL
Asset Management jointly markets and distributes its products through a number of independent commercial
banks in Russia including ZAO Citibank (Moscow) (“Citibank™) and the Savings Bank of the Russian Federation
(“Sberbank™), the largest commercial bank in Russia. PFIOGLOBAL Asset Management began selling through
three Citibank branches in February 2004, and at December 31, 2004, sold its products through eleven Citibank
branches in Moscow and one in St. Petersburg. PIOGLOBAL Asset Management began selling through three
Sberbank branches in the second quarter of 2004, increasing to 177 branches by September 15, 2004,
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management also sells its products directly through a sales office in Moscow, leasing prime
retail space from an independent Russian commercial bank and its corporate office, also located in Moscow.
During 2003 PIOGLOBAL Asset Management upgraded and expanded the scope of its institutional sales force
and now manages institutional assets for a number of non-state pension funds and insurance companies in Russia.

Competition. At December 31, 2004, there were 177 registered investment management companies in
Russia and 246 unit furids, consisting of 153 open-end funds, 50 interval funds and 43 closed-end funds.
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management occupies a leading position in Russia with respect to investment management
services. As of December 31, 2004, open-end unit fund assets under management were approximately $61.3
million, which represented approximately 12% of the Russian open-end unit fund market. PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management has five significant competitors, with aggregate assets under management comprising
approximately 47% of the open-end unit fund market. PIOGLOBAL Asset Management also competes for
institutional and high net worth investors for its trust management business and its two interval funds. Trust
account and interval fund assets under management at December 31, 2004 were $54.3 million and $5.8 million,
respectively. Generally, accurate data is not available regarding the relative success of competitors in
accumulating trust assets under management. PIOGLOBAL Asset Management is seeking to increase its assets
under management by competing for retail, institutional and high net worth investors. However, some of its
competitors have substantially greater resources to attract such investors. Several factors affect competitive
conditions in the Russian asset management business, including:

— historical fund performance;
— low barriers to entry;
— financial resources of competitors;

— access to distribution channels and large institutional investors;
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— quality of service; and

— consumer confidence.

Employees. At December 31, 2004, Pioglobal First Russia and its subsidiaries employed 85 persons.

REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS

Harbor Global’s real estate management operations are conducted by PREA. PREA is based in Boston,
Massachusetts and conducts its operations in Russia through a representative office in Moscow. In 2004,
virtually all of PREA’s revenues were derived from managing the Meridian Commercial Tower for
PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund.

Asset Realization Strategy. The asset realization strategy for PREA’s Moscow operation will continue to
be inextricably linked to that of the Meridian Commercial Tower. - - - - Sl

Employees. At December 31, 2004, PREA and its subsidiaries had 28 employees, including one expatriate
employee provided by PIOGlobal Corporation, a Delaware corporation and indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
Harbor Global.

OTHER

Cash and Marketable Securities. Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held directly by Harbor
Global at December 31, 2004 totaled approximately $9.4 million.

Ashanti Proceeds. In May 2000, Pioglobal Goldfields II Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of
the company (“Goldfields II”), sold its. gold mining operations in Ghana to Ashanti Goldfields Teberebie Limited
(“Ashanti”) for an $18.8 million base purchase price plus additional payments of up to $5.0 million contingent
upon the market price of gold and productivity of the Ghanaian gold mine. On June 19, 2000, $5.0 million of the
base purchase price was paid to Goldfields II in cash and $13.8 million of the base purchase price was paid in the
form of a non-interest bearing promissory note.

Effective March 19, 2003, Goldfields II and Ashanti executed an amendment to the purchase agreement,
pursuant to which Ashanti agreed to release Goldfields II from its obligation to indemnify Ashanti for breach of
representations and warranties relating to tax and environmental matters contained in the purchase agreement in
exchange for a $1.1 million reduction in the amount remaining due from Ashanti to Goldfields II under the
purchase agreement and related promissory note. As of December 31, 2004, the Company had received a total of
$12.7 million due from Ashanti and the promissory note has been paid in full.

Under the Distribution Agreement, Harbor Global had agreed to reimburse Pioneer for any liability it incurs
in connection with any claim brought by Ashanti for indemnification under the purchase agreement. In addition,
under the Distribution Agreement with Pioneer, Harbor Global had agreed that, promptly after the fifth
anniversary of the closing of the purchase agreement, it would pay to Pioneer the lesser of $5 million or the .
actual proceeds received by Goldfields I from Ashanti under the purchase agreement less any indemnification
claims paid under the purchase agreement.

In connection with the release of Goldfields II from its indemnification obligations to Ashanti, Pioneer and
the Company entered into an amendment to the Distribution Agreement. Pursuant to the-amendment, Pioneer -
agreed to accept $3.75 million in satisfaction of the Company’s obligation 1o pay Pioneer the lesser of $5.0
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million or the actual proceeds received by Goldfields II from Ashanti under the purchase agreement less any
indemnification claims paid under the purchase agreement if the $3.75 million was paid on or before March 31,
2003. The Company paid $3.75 million to Pioneer on March 20, 2003. As a result of the foregoing reduction in,
and satisfaction of, the note payable to Pioneer, the Company recorded a gain of $1.25 million during the first
quarter of 2003, which is reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations as a component of other income
(expense).

In addition to the $18.8 million base purchase price, Ashanti agreed to pay Goldfields II additional
supplemental payments of $250,000 per calendar quarter from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2006, contingent on
the market price of gold and productivity of the Ghanaian gold mine. The Company earned its first supplemental
payment of $250,000 for the quarter ending March 31, 2003. On April 25, 2003, Goldfields I agreed to sell its right
to receive the remaining twelve (12) additional supplemental payments from Ashanti to HSBC Bank USA (“HSBC
Bank”) in exchange for one cash payment of $875,000. The transaction was consummated on April 30, 2003 and, as
a result, the Company recorded a gain of $875,000 in the second quarter of 2003, which is reflected in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations as a component of other income (expense).

Polish Venture Capital Investment. Harbor Global holds minority interests in two venture capital
partnerships, a 7.2% interest in Prospect Poland U.S., L.P. (formerly “Pioneer Poland U.S., L.P.”} and 2 9.2%
interest in Prospect Poland UK, L.P. (formerly “Pioneer Poland UK, L.P.”) Together, the venture capital
partnerships constitute the Prospect Poland Fund (formerly the “Pioneer Poland Fund”).

In recent years, the Prospect Poland Fund’s management has significantly written-down the carrying values of
the underlying portfolio investments, including the complete write-off of six investments. During 2004, Prospect
Poland Fund’s management sold three of its investments. The fair value of the one remaining investment in the
portfolio at December 31, 2004 was approximately $3.0 million, and Harbor Global’s minority interest in the
portfolio was approximately $0.3 million. The one remaining portfolio company is engaged in food distribution.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Russian Timber Operations. On February 5, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the
disposition of the Russian timber operation. Accordingly, the Russian timber operation was separated from the
results of continuing operations and was reported as a discontinued operation commencing in 2001. Pursuant to
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of
Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and
Transactions” (“APB No. 30”), the Company recorded the disposal effective December 31, 2001. The Company
adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 144 “Accounting for the Impairment or
Disposal of Long Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”), effective January 1, 2002, which supersedes APB No. 30.
The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

On May 28, 2002, Harbor Global’s wholly owned subsidiary, Pioneer Forest, Inc. (“Pioneer Forest™), sold
its Russian timber business conducted through Closed Joint-Stock Company “Forest-Starma” (“Forest-Starma”)
by the sale of Pioneer Forest’s entire interest in Pioglobal Forest L.L.C. (“Pioglobal Forest™), the sole shareholder
of Forest-Starma, to a British Virgin Islands company for an aggregate purchase price of $7.55 miilion, of which
$5.55 million was paid in cash at the closing and $2.0 million was paid in the form of a one-year promissory
note. The remaining $2.0 million was received, and the promissory note paid in full, on June 3, 2003.

A three-year financial summary for the timber business is shown below:

2004 2003 2002
(In Millions)
REVEIUES . o oottt ettt ettt e e e e s $— $— $—
Net InCOmE (LOSS) .« - . v vt vttt ettt $— $— $04




EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2004, Harbor Global and its subsidiaries employed a total of 113 employees worldwide.
None of the employees of Harbor Global or its subsidiaries are unionized or parties to any collective bargaining
agreement.

In addition to the employees of Harbor Global and its subsidiaries, Harbor Global pays the salaries of six
employees of Calypso Management LLC, the company that manages the operation and liquidation of Harbor
Global’s assets.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Harbor Global’s principal properties consist of its leased principal executive offices in Boston,
Massachusetts, leased offices in Moscow, Russia and the Meridian Commercial Tower.

The Company and its subsidiaries conduct their principal operations from leased premises with
approximately 3,497 square feet at One Faneuil Hall Marketplace, Boston, Massachusetts. The lease commenced
on November 15, 2000 at a rate of $160,862 per year and will expire on October 24, 2005. The Company has the
right to renew its lease for three one year periods at an annual rental rate for such renewal terms of no less than
$160,862 per year, subject to increase to a maximum of the then current market rental rate for such premises,
plus the Company’s pro rata share of any increase in operating expenses and real estate taxes for the premises.
Calypso Management pays the rent for this location on behalf of the Company and is reimbursed by the
Company pursuant to the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.

PIOGLOBAL Asset Management and PIOGLOBAL Services lease, in the aggregate, approximately 7,779
square feet of office space in Moscow, Russia. The aggregate annual rent and related fees for these premises is
approximately $430,000. Approximately 1,106 square feet of office space leased during 2004 was not renewed.
The annual rent and related fees for this space was approximately $294,000 in 2004. A lease for approximately
743 square feet expires on November 30, 2005 and a lease totaling approximately 7,036 square feet expires on
February 28, 2007. The Company retains the right to terminate the lease expiring on February 28, 2007 by
written notification to the lessor sixty days prior to cancellation.

The Meridian Commercial Tower, an 18-story, 20,707 square meter office building in Moscow, Russia, is
owned by the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund, the Company’s principal asset. The Meridian
Commercial Tower is managed by PREA and occupied primarily by United States and European corporate tenants
or their Russian subsidiaries. Income relating to this property is reported under the Company’s Russian Real Estate
Management and Investment Management Operations segment. Lease revenue from the Meridian Commercial
Tower accounted for approximately 88% of the revenues of the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund in 2004.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.
Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries is currently a party to any material legal proceedings.
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

The 2004 annual general meeting of the Company’s shareholders (the “Annual Meeting™) was held on
October 18, 2004. At the Annual Meeting, proxies representing 5,107,825 shares, or 90.22% of the Company 8
outstanding shares, were voted as follows:

To appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”) as the independent auditor of the Company until the
close of the Company’s 2005 Annual General Meeting at a fee to be agreed by the Company’s Board of Directors
acting through the Company’s Audit Committee.

For Against Abstain
5,077,207 26,002 4,616
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To approve the Amended and Restated Harbor Global Company Ltd. Non-Employee Director Share Plan,
which increased by 23,000 the number of Common Shares authorized for issuance under the plan and extends the
plan to be co-terminus with any extension of the time period permitted for the operation and liquidation of the
Company’s assets, as may be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors from time to time in accordance
with the Company’s Memorandum of Association.

For Against Abstain
2,397,047 84,739 2,626,039

Broker non-votes are included in the 2,626,039 abstentions with respect to the vote approving the Amended
and Restated Harbor Global Company Ltd. Non-Employee Director Share Plan. Broker non-votes, like
abstentions, are not considered votes cast and therefore, had no effect on the outcome of the vote approving the
Amended and Restated Harbor Global Company Ltd. Non-Employee Director Share Plan.

PART I

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

The Company’s common shares are traded on the OTC Bulletin Board under the symbol HRBGF.OB. The
following table sets forth the high and low bid quotations for the periods indicated as reported by the National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotation System (NASDAQ) between dealers. These quotations
do not include retail markups, markdowns or commissions and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

Low High

2003

First QUarter . ...ttt it it e e e e $6.700 $ 7.650
Second QUAmET .. ..ottt e e e 7.000 8.100
Third QUarter . . ..ottt e e e 7.300 9.000
Fourth Quarter . ........... it ettt 7.500 10.850
2004

FAESt QUATTET . .o\ttt ettt e et et e et et e $7.750 $10.750
Second QUarter ...... ...ttt e e e 9.500 10.000
Third QUAarter . . .. oottt it et it et e e et e e 9.250 9.800
Fourth QuUarter . ...ttt it i e e e e e 8.750 10.500

On December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately 2,460 holders of record of its common stock.

On June 27, 2003, the Company made a distribution of $1.40 per share to shareholders of record as of
June 17, 2003. On November 15, 2004, the Company made a distribution of $0.69 per share to shareholders of
record as of November 5, 2004. In the course of liquidating its assets, the Company anticipates paying additional
cash dividends to its shareholders.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities. In reliance on Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933
(transactions by an issuer not involving any public offering), and in accordance with the Company’s shareholder
approved Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Share Plan, the Company issued 1,500 shares of its
common stock to each of its four directors on October 24, 2004, October 24, 2003 and October 24, 2002.
According to the plan, on each anniversary of October 24, 2000, the Spin-off date, each director of the Company
who is not an employee will be granted 1,500 common shares in consideration of his or her future services as a
director.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.,

The following table presents summary consolidated historical financial data for Harbor Global for the five
fiscal years ended December 31, which has been derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements of
Harbor Global for these periods. The following selected consolidated financial data should be read in conjunction
with Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,” and the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Harbor Global, including the notes thereto, referred to in Item 8. For fiscal
year 2000, the consolidated financials included herein may not necessarily reflect the consolidated results of
operations, financial position, changes in shareholders’ equlty and cash flows of Harbor Global if it had been a
separate stand-alone entity.

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Amounts In Thousands Except Per Share Amounts

Income Statement Data

Revenue ............. .. iiiiiiinnn... $12319 $ 10,701 $ 9771 $ 8,609 $ 9,874
Operating Expenses ....................... (17,366) (16,126) (15,988) (17,789) (21,161)
OtherIncome ........... .. .coviunienirn... 4,074 29,272 15,095 12,237 4,903
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations . . . .. (4,008) 7,837 659 2,377 (3,889)
(Loss) Earnings Per Share from Continuing

Operations ... ........ovvereeeeeeennnn.. $ ©071) $ 139 $ 012 $§ 042 $ (0.69

Balance Sheet Data

Total ASSELS . .\ v vttt i e $94273 $100,561 $ 98,665 $101,572 $143,509
Total Long-term Obligations ................ 2,039 1,613 7,263 7,086 6,800
Total Equity ...........coviviiiiniennnn.. 47,568 54,724 55,159 56,663~ 75,256
Cash Distributions Per Share ................ $ 069 $ 140 $ 090 $ 231 $§ —

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company’s discussion and analysis of its financial condition and resuits of operations are based-upon
the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accountmg
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires management to make estimates,
assumptions and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
Company evaluates its estimates on an on-going basis. The Company’s estimates are based on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis for making judgments about the Company’s assets, liabilities, income and
expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under
different assumptions or conditions.

The Company considers its critical accounting policies to include those related to (i) current marketable
securities, (ii) long-term marketable securities, (iii) the valuation of its Polish venture capital investment, (iv)
accrued management fees and (v) deferred taxes. :

Current marketable securities consist primarily of United States Treasury securities and Russian
Government and Municipal securities. United States Treasury securities are classified as held-to-maturity and
recorded at amortized cost. Russian government and municipal securities are classified as trading securities and
are marked-to-market, with unrealized gains or losses reported in other income (expense) in the Consolidated
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Statement of Operations pursuant to SFAS No. 115 “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities” (“SFAS No. 115”). Russian government securities are held primarily in the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund. Security transactions are recorded on the settlement date. Investments are valued at the
weighted average daily price if they are traded on valuation date; otherwise, the bid price is used.

Long-term marketable securities consist primarily of Russian equity and fixed income securities, including
Russian corporate bonds, held in the portfolio of the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund. In addition,
certain subsidiaries of the Company maintain investments in the unit funds managed by PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management. Russian corporate bonds and unit fund investments are characterized as available-for-sale and
recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices pursuant to SFAS No. 115. Equity securities are also
classified as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value pursuant to SFAS No. 115. In determining fair value,
individual equity securities must first satisfy certain trading volume and bid-ask spread criteria established by
management to demonstrate that there is sufficient breadth and scope in the market for that security. Equity
securities that satisfy these criteria are recorded in long-term marketable securities based on the quoted price in
the Russian Trading System. Investments that do not have a readily determinable market value are recorded in
long term investments at cost with adjustments for other than temporary impairment. The cost of securities sold
is based on the weighted-average method. Dividend income received on investments is recognized on a cash
basis. Unrealized gains and unrealized losses are recorded net of deferred taxes and minority interest in
stockholders equity as other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Realized gains or losses
and any other than temporary declines in value are reported in other income (expense) in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations.

The Company reports its approximately 8% aggregate limited partnership interest in the Prospect Poland
Fund on the equity basis of accounting. No market quotes are available for the Polish venture capital investment.
The investment is valued at fair value, as determined by Prospect Poland Fund’s management. Unrealized and
realized gains or losses are recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The Company analyzes the
assumptions supporting changes in the fair value of the investment for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

On July 10, 2003, Harbor Global entered into an amended and restated administration and liquidation
agreement with Calypso Management pursuant to which Calypso Management manages the liquidation of
Harbor Global and operates Harbor Global’s assets pending their liquidation. As compensation for its provision
of services to the Company, Calypso Management receives a portion of the net proceeds distributed to
shareholders in connection with the liquidation of the Company’s assets. In addition, in the event 80% of the
Company’s common shares are sold or if the Company’s shareholders immediately prior to a business
combination or transaction cease to own at least 50% of the outstanding common shares and voting power
entitled to vote generally in the election of directors following such combination or transaction (referred to as a
“deemed sale”), Calypso Management is entitled to receive a portion of the consideration as would be received
by all shareholders if all of the outstanding common shares were sold at the valuation of Harbor Global based on
the per share consideration received by each shareholder who sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of shares in
the transaction. Also, in the event of a change in control (as defined in the amended and restated administration
and liquidation agreement) coupled with a material change in the engagement status of Calypso Management or
the employment status of its principal officers, Calypso Management will be paid a cash amount equal to a
portion of the value of the underlying assets with such value determined pursuant to a predetermined valuation
schedule. Compensation to Calypso Management represents a percentage of such distributions, deemed
distributions or distributions related to a change in control, which varies depending upon the source of the
distribution and the cumulative amount of distributions since the Spin-off.

With respect to ongoing asset sales, Harbor Global accrues management fees at the earlier of (1) the formal
declaration by the Board of Directors of a distribution or (2) the time when a distributable amount is estimable
following the sale or liquidation of an asset. Harbor Global will also accrue management fees when a distribution
to Calypso Management is triggered following a deemed sale of the Company or a change in control as defined
in the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.
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The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based on the difference between the financial
statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities. The Company regularly reviews its deferred
tax assets for recoverability and establishes a valuation allowance based on historical taxable income, projected
future taxable income, and the expected timing of the reversals of existing temporary differences.

OVERVIEW

The Consolidated Financial Statements of Harbor Global’s principal operations include its Russian real ..
estate management and investment management operations, real estate management operations and other
operations. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations are
presented in three sections: Results of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
Liquidity and Capital Resources, and Future Operating Results.

The Company previously reported its Russian timber operations as a separate segment. Due to the sale of -
the Russian timber operations segment, the results from the Russian timber operations have been segregated from
continuing operations. The segment disclosures previously reported have been restated to reflect the Company’s
continuing segments.

Results of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002

Consolidated Operations.  For fiscal year 2004, Harbor Global reported a net loss of $4.0 million as
compared to net income of $7.8 million in 2003 and net income of $1.1 million for fiscal year 2002.

In 2004, the Company reported a net loss of $4.0 million compared to net income of $7.8 million in 2003.
The $11.8 million decrease in net income was attributable primarily to $8.0 million of lower realized portfolio
gains from the Russian real estate management and investment management operations, a non-recurring 2003
gain of approximately $1.3 million from the early settlement of the Company’s $5 million note payable to
Pioneer, non-recurring 2003 gains aggregating $1.2 million associated with the receipt of a supplemental
payment from Ashanti followed by the sale to HSBC Bank of the Company’s right to receive further
supplemental payments, a $1.1 million federal income tax liability associated with the conversion of Pioglobal
First Russia, Inc. into a Delaware limited liability company, a $0.8 million increase in withholding taxes
associated with an increase in the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund dividend and a $0.6 million
increase in advertising expense. The lower gains and expense increases were offset partially by a $1.3 million
increase in management fee income.

Net income from continuing operations was $7.8 million in 2003 compared to $0.7 million in 2002. The
$7.1 million increase in net income from continuing operations was attributable principally to higher realized
portfolio gains of $5.8 million from the Russian real estate management and investment management operations,
a $1.3 million gain from the early settlement of the Company’s note payable to Pioneer, gains aggregating $1.2
million associated with the receipt of a supplemental payment from Ashanti followed by the sale to-HSBC Bank
of the Company’s right to receive further supplemental payments and a $0.6 million increase in foreign exchange
gains. These increases were offset by lower interest income of $0.6 million due to the restructuring of the note
receivable from Ashanti, management fees paid to Calypso Management of $0.6 million associated with the
second quarter 2003 distribution to shareholders and a $0.5 million restricted unit award to two officers of
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management.

Income of $0.4 million from discontinued operations in 2002 represents an increase in the final selling price
of the Russian timber operations over the 2001 estimate.
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Revenues and net income by on-going business segment for 2004, 2003 and 2002 are set forth on the
following table:

Revenues Net Income (Loss)
12 Months Ended 12 Months Ended
December 31, December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
(In Millions) (In Millions)
Russian Real Estate Management & Investment Management ... .. $11.3 $9.1 $86 $(3.6) $59 $0.1)
Real Estate Management Operations ................c......... 1.0 13 12 (07 05 07
O her ..o e — 03 — 03 24 15
Total From Continuing Operations ....................... 10.7 9.8 78 07
Discontinued Operations ................cciiiiiiiiniina.. — _ = = — 0.4
07 1 L S $12.3 $10.7 $9.8 $4.0) $78 $1.1

Russian Real Estate Management and Investment Management Operations. The Russian real estate
management and investment management operations reported a net loss of $3.6 million in 2004 compared to net
income of $5.9 million in 2003. The $9.5 million decrease in income was attributable to $8.0 million of lower
realized portfolio gains, the $1.1 million federal income tax liability from the Pioglobal First Russia conversion,
a $0.8 million increase in withholding taxes paid by the Company due to an increase in the PIOGLOBAL Real
Estate Investment Fund annual dividend, a $0.6 million increase in advertising expenses and a $0.3 million
increase in salary expense. The lower gains and increase in expenses were offset partially by $1.3 million of
additional management fee income attributable to an increase in assets under management.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment
management operations reported net income of $5.9 million compared to a net loss of $0.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2002. The $6.0 million increase in income was primarily attributable to a $5.8 million
increase in realized portfolio gains, a $0.6 million increase in foreign exchange gains, a $0.4 million increase in
management fee income and a $0.2 million increase in interest income. These increases were offset partially by
higher salary and employee related expenses of $1.0 million, which includes a $0.5 million restricted unit award
to two officers of PIOGLOBAL Asset Management.

Real Estate Management Operations. For the year ended December 31, 2004 the real estate management
operations reported a net loss of 0.7 million compared to a net loss of $0.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2003. The $0.2 million increase in losses was due primarily to lower leasing income.

The real estate management operations reported a net loss of $0.5 miilion in 2003 compared to a net loss of
$0.7 million in 2002. The decrease in net losses was attributable principally to a reduction in corporate overhead
expenses.

Other. Harbor Global’s other segment reported net income of $0.3 million in 2004 compared to net
income of $2.4 million in 2003, The $2.1 million decrease in income was principally due to the following non-
recurring gains and revenue recorded in 2003 totaling $2.5 million: the $1.3 million gain from the early
settlement of the Company’s note payable to Pioneer, the $0.9 million gain recorded on the sale to HSBC Bank
of Goldfield’s II right to receive supplemental payments from Ashanti and a supplemental payment from Ashanti
of approximately $0.3 million earned by Goldfield’s II. These items were offset by $0.4 million lower
management fee expense.

For the year ended December 31, 2003, Harbor Global’s other segment reported net income of $2.4 million
compared to net income of $1.5 million in 2002. The $0.9 million increase in income reflects the non-recurring
gains and revenue recorded in 2003 totaling $2.5 million described above and a $0.3 million lower write down of
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the venture capital investment. These increases were offset partially by lower interest income of $1.2 million due
in part to the restructuring of the note receivable from Ashanti, and management fees of $0.5 million associated
with the second quarter 2003 distribution to shareholders.

Discontinued Operations. On February 5, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the
disposition of the Russian timber operations. Accordingly, the Russian timber business was separated from the
results of continuing operations and was reported as a discontinued operation commencing in 2001. Pursuant to
APB No. 30, the Company recorded the disposal effective December 31, 2001. On May 28, 2002, Pioneer Forest
sold its entire interest in Pioglobal Forest, the sole shareholder of Forest-Starma, to a British Virgin Islands '
company for an aggregate purchase price of $7.55 million, of which $5.55 million was paid in cash at the closing
and $2.0 million was paid in the form of a one-year promissory note, which was paid in full on June 3, 2003.
Income from discontinued Russian timber operations of $0.4 million in 2002 represents an increase in the selling
price of the operations over the amount anticipated at year end 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquid assets held directly by Harbor Global consisting of cash and cash equivalents and marketable--- - -
securities maintained for general corporate purposes were $9.4 million as of December 31, 2004, This represents
a $1.8 million increase from the 2003 fiscal year-end and isattributablé principally to the $5.7 million dividend
received from PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund and the $4.7 million payment by Ashanti pursuant to
the promissory note payable to Goldfields II. These cash inflows were offset partially by the $3.9 million
distribution to shareholders (net of an approximately $0.3 million management fee paid to Calypso Management
pursuant to the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement) and the funding of operations
and settlement of year-end accruals. Management believes that the cash available for general corporate purposes
is sufficient to fund operations over the next two years.

The assets of the Company’s majority-owned Russian subsidiary, PFOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment
Fund, consist of cash and cash equivalents, equity securities (both 11qu1d and 1111qu1d) marketable securities, real
estate holdings, and other miscellaneous assets.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements. The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that
have had or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect on the Company’s financial condition, changes
in financial condition, revenues, expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital
resources that are material to investors. ‘

Tabular Disclosure of Contractual Obligations. The following table sets forth information és of Deéember
31, 2004 with respect to certain known contractual obligations of Harbor Global.

Payments Due by Period
(Dollars in Thousands)
Less More
than 1 1-3 3-5 than 5
Year Years Years Years*
Operating Lease Obligations . .. .........c.ooiiiieiiinn.. $640  $543  $99 $50
Total ... e $640 $543 $9_9 $_5(_)

* The Company has the right to renew its lease for its principal executive offices located at One Faneuil Hall
Marketplace, Boston, Massachusetts for three one year periods at an-annual rental rate for such renewal terms
of no less than $160,862 per year, subject to increase to a maximum of the then current market rental rate for
such premises, plus the Company’s pro rata share of any increase in operating expenses and real estate taxes
for the premises. In addition, the Company has the right to renew certain of its leases for office space in
Moscow, Russia for varying periods of time at varying rental rates. Accordingly, the obligations reported in
this column are subject to increase in the amount of such annual rent in the event the Company exercises its
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right to renew one or more of its leases. In addition, the Company has the right to terminate its lease for office
space in Moscow, Russia by written notification to the lessor sixty days prior to cancellation. Accordingly, the
amounts reflected in all columns are subject to decrease in the event the Company terminates this lease.

Future Operating Results

From time to time, management may make forward-looking statements in this Annual Report on Form
10-K, in other documents that the Company files with the Securities and Exchange Commission (including
exhibits and those documents incorporated by reference into this Annual Report on Form 10-K), in press releases
or in other public discussions. The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a “safe harbor” for
these statements. For this purpose, a forward-looking statement is any statement that is not a statement of
historical fact. Forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, those about asset realization plans and
strategies, anticipated expenses, liquidity and capital resources and expectations about market conditions.
Forward-looking statements can be identified by the words “may,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “expects,”
“estimates” and similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are based on currently available information
and management’s expectations of future results but involve certain assumptions. Management cautions readers
that assumptions involve substantial risks and uncertainties. Consequently, any forward-looking statement could
turn out to be wrong. Many factors could cause actual results to differ materially from expectations. Management
assumes no obligation to update any such forward-looking statements. Described below are some of the
important factors that could affect revenues or results of operations.

LIS

THE POTENTIAL VALUES TO BE REALIZED UPON THE SALE OR LIQUIDATION OF MOST
OF HARBOR GLOBAL’S ASSETS, IF ANY, ARE SPECULATIVE.

The potential values to be realized upon the sale of Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and
investment management operations, if any, are speculative.

A significant portion of Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management
operations consists of its approximately 52% interest in PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund, a company
that invests in Russian real estate, and to a lesser extent, securities of Russian companies. Generally, the Russian
real estate and securities markets are significantly smaller and less liquid than the markets in the United States,
and as a result, a portion of the assets held by PFIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund are illiquid. There is
also limited liquidity in some of the publicly traded securities of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund.
Consequently, Harbor Global may have difficulty selling some of its investment in PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund or causing PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund to liquidate some of its underlying
assets, and may only be able to do so at prices, which may not reflect the long-term value of its investments.

AN INCREASE IN COMPETITION IN THE RUSSIAN COMMERCIAL REAL ESTATE
MARKET MAY ADVERSELY AFFECT THE COMPANY’S REVENUES AND THE VALUE OF THE
COMPANY’S PRINCIPAL ASSET, THE MERIDIAN COMMERCIAL TOWER.

PIGGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund is Harbor Global’s principal asset. A significant portion of the
assets of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund consists of its ownership of the Meridian Commercial Tower.
In 2004, revenues from the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund comprised approximately 73% of Harbor
Global’s total revenue. Furthermore, Meridian Commercial Tower lease revenues accounted for approximately
88% of the revenues of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund and approximately 71% of the total revenue
generated by Harbor Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management operations.

There is currently a shortage of commercial real estate in Moscow, Russia, which has brought about a
significant increase in planned commercial real estate construction. If and when such new buildings are
commissioned, competition for tenants may increase and adversely affect the Company’s ability to attract new,
and retain existing, tenants. The loss of more than a few tenants could materially adversely affect the Company’s
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revenues. In addition, .an increase in supply of commercial real estate in Russia may adversely affect the value of
the Meridian Commercial Tower, the Company’s principal asset.

HARBOR GLOBAL’S RUSSIAN BUSINESSES ARE SUSCEPTIBLE TO NUNIEROUS RISKS
AND UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS.

Harbor Global conducts business primarily in Russia. Harbor Global will continue to operate its Russian
businesses until those businesses are liquidated and will continue to be subject to the risks of doing business in
Russia, including:

— unexpected changes in regulatory requirements and the legal system;
— tariffs and other trade barriers;

— difficulties in staffing and managing Russian operations;

— political and economic instability;

— fluctuations in currency exchange rates;

— restrictions on currency exchange and repatriation;

— restrictions on foreign investment in its businesses; and

— potentially adverse tax consequences.

For example, in recent years Russia has undergone substantial political, economic and social change. As is
typical of an emerging market, Russia does not possess a well-developed business, legal and regulatory
infrastructure that would generally exist in the United States or in a more mature free market economy. The
Russian ruble is not freely convertible in most countries outside of Russia and the country possesses restrictive
currency controls and relatively high inflation. In addition, the tax, currency and customs legislation within
Russia is subject to varying interpretations and changes, which can occur frequently. Consequently, Harbor
Global’s Russian real estate management and investment management operations involve significant risks, such
as those listed above, which are not typically associated with developed markets. While there have been
improvements in economic trends, the future economic direction of Russia is largely dependent upon the
effectiveness of economic, financial and monetary measures undertaken by the government, together with tax,
legal, regulatory, and political developments. The liquidation of these businesses, as well as the successful
operation of these businesses pending their liquidation, will depend on the stability of, and economic conditions
in, Russia.

THE LOSS OF KEY OFFICERS AND MANAGERS COULD IMPAIR THE ABILITY OF
HARBOR GLGOBAL TO SUCCESSFULLY OPERATE AND MANAGE ITS ASSETS PRIOR TO THEIR
LIQUIDATION.

Mr. Kasnet is the President and Chief Executive Officer, and Mr. Hunter is the Chief Operating Officer and
Chief Financial Officer of Harbor Global. Mr. Kasnet previously served as the President, and Mr. Hunter
previously served as the Chief Operating Officer and Senior Vice President of Pioneer Global Investments, a
division of Pioneer. As executive officers of Pioneer Global Investments, Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter operated
substantially all the businesses that Harbor Global now owns. In addition Calypso Management, an entity owned
and operated by Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, manages the liquidation of Harbor Global and operates Harbor
Global's assets pending their liquidation pursuant to the terms of an amended and restated administration and
liquidation agreement.

Because Harbor Global’s assets are a diverse range of businesses and are generally located in Russia, where
successfully conducting and selling businesses requires significant experience, Harbor Global believes that its
success in liquidating its assets and operating its assets pending their liquidation will depend to a significant
extent upon the continued efforts of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter. The loss of the services of either Mr. Kasnet or
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Mr. Hunter could have a material adverse effect upon Harbor Global’s results of operations and financial
condition. The services of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter may also be critical to Harbor Global’s ability to liquidate
its assets at prices that will enable Harbor Global to make meaningful distributions to its shareholders.

Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter both entered into employment agreements with Calypso Management. On
December 8, 2004, the term of Mr. Kasnet’s employment agreement was extended until October 24, 2006 to
coincide with the term of the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement. Mr. Hunter’s
employment agreement provides that Mr. Hunter’s employment with Calypso Management is at will, subject to -
termination by either Calypso Management or Mr. Hunter upon 60 days prior written notice. If either Mr.
Kasnet’s or Mr. Hunter’s employment with Calypso Management is terminated, the individual whose agreement
is terminated will cease to be an officer of Harbor Global. Harbor Global has obtained key officer life insurance
policies with benefits payable to Harbor Global for Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter.

HARBOR GLOBAL WILL INDEMNIFY PIONEER FOR SOME LIABILITIES ACCRUING
AFTER THE SPIN-OFF.

Under the Distribution Agreement, Harbor Global agreed to indemnify Pioneer for liabilities, other than tax
liabilities, incurred by Pioneer relating to the businesses or operations of the Harbor Global assets. Additionally,
under a tax separation agreement between Harbor Global and Pioneer, generally, Harbor Global agreed to
indemnify Pioneer for tax liabilities relating to the Harbor Global businesses. Currently, there are no suits
pending that would require payment by Harbor Global to Pioneer under the indemnification provisions of the
Distribution Agreement or tax separation agreement. However, Harbor Global cannot provide assurances that no
legal proceeding or other claim will occur that would require Harbor Global to indemnify Pioneer. Furthermore,
Harbor Global and its subsidiaries may be subject to legal proceedings or other claims arising in the ordinary
course of business, including employment related claims, environmental claims and regulatory fees or fines
associated with its international operations.

THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT SHAREHOLDERS WILL BE ABLE TO SELL THEIR
HARBOR GLOBAL COMMON SHARES.

Harbor Global common shares are not listed on any securities exchange or on The Nasdaq Stock Market(R).

Furthermore, Harbor Global does not intend to:
— engage the services of any market maker;

— facilitate the development of an active public trading market in Harbor Global common shares, or
encourage others to do so;

— place any advertisements in the media promoting an investment in Harbor Global; or

— except as required by the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, collect or publish information about prices at
which Harbor Global common shares may be traded.

Harber Global cannot provide assurances as to the prices at which Harbor Global common shares may trade
or provide assurances that shareholders will be able to sell their Harbor Global common shares.

AS A RESULT OF HOLDING HARBOR GLOBAL COMMON SHARES, HARBOR GLOBAL’S
SHAREHOLDERS MAY RECOGNIZE TAXABLE INCOME AND BE REQUIRED TO PAY TAX
WITHOUT A CORRESPONDING DISTRIBUTION OF CASH FROM HARBOR GLOBAL TO ITS
SHAREHOLDERS.

For United States federal income tax purposes, Harbor Global is treated as a partnership. For United States
federal income tax purposes, Harbor Global’s shareholders will be treated as partners in a Bermuda partnership
and their Harbor Global common shares will represent partnership interests. Because of its classification as a
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partnership for United States federal income tax purposes, Harbor Global is not itself subject to United States
federal income tax. Instead, items of income, gain, loss, deduction and expense will flow through to Harbor
Global’s shareholders, and they will be required to include their allocable share of these items in computing their
own United States federal income tax for each taxable year of Harbor Global. Cash distributions made by Harbor
Global to its shareholders generally will not be taxable, except to the extent that those distributions exceed a
shareholder’s adjusted tax basis in the Harbor Global common shares.

Harbor Global believes that one or more of its foreign subsidiaries may be classified as a foreign personal
holding company or passive foreign investment company for United States federal income tax purposes. If any
such subsidiary is classified as a foreign personal holding company or passive foreign investment company,
Harbor Global’s shareholders may be required to recognize taxable income and pay tax with respect to a portion
of the subsidiary’s income, even in the absence of the receipt of any payment of cash or other property from the
subsidiary. The tax rules regarding foreign partnerships, foreign personal holding companies and passive foreign
investment companies are complicated. Harbor Global’s shareholders should consult their tax advisors to
determine the tax consequences to them of holding Harbor Global common shares.

HARBOR GLOBAL WILL BE SUBJECT TO SIGNIFICANT RESTRICTIONS iF IT BECOMES
AN INVESTMENT COMPANY.

Harbor Global intends to conduct its businesses and operations so as to avoid being required to register as an
investment company. If, nevertheless, Harbor Global were to be required to register as an investment company,
because Harbor Global is a foreign company, the Investment Company Act of 1940 would prohibit Harbor Global
and any person deemed to be an underwriter of Harbor Global’s securities from offering for sale, selling or
delivering after sale, in connection with a public offering, any security issued by Harbor Global in the United States.

RECENT PRONOUNCEMENTS OF THE FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BCARD
None.
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Harbor Global monitors its exposure to adverse changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates
and market fluctuations.

The Company’s interest rate risk involves the short-term investment of excess cash. This risk impacts fair
values, earnings and cash flows. Excess cash is primarily invested in foreign government bonds and United
States treasury bills. These short-term investments are reported either as cash and cash equivalents or marketable
securities. The balance of such securities at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 was approximately $0.7
million and $1.1 million, respectively, of cash and cash equivalents and $17.5 million and $6.1 million,
respectively, of marketable securities. Earnings from excess cash invested were approximately $1.1 million for
the year ended December 31, 2004. Based on excess cash invested at December 31, 2004, a one percent increase
in current market interest rates would have the effect of causing an approximately $0.2 million additional pre-tax
credit to the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Harbor Global is exposed to certain changes in foreign currency exchange rates, primarily as a result of its
operations in Russia. The United States dollar (the Company’s reporting currency) has been designated as the
Company’s functional currency. Translation gains and losses that result from remeasuring into the United States
dollar are included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. To mitigate against currency translation risk, the
Company primarily transacts in United States dollars by contracting for most of its costs and revenues in United
States dollars. This acts as a natural hedge to protect against currency fluctuations from the Company’s
operations. During 2004 and 2003, the Company reported net exchange gains of $0.9 million and $0.6 million,
respectively and, during 2002, exchange losses were $0.4 million.
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The Russian ruble is not a fully convertible currency outside of Russia. The translation of ruble denominated
assets and liabilities into United States dollars for the purpose of these financial statements does not indicate that
the Company could realize or settle in United States dollars the reported values of these assets and liabilities. The
Company reports all of its non-monetary assets and liabilities held in Russia at historical exchange rates, and any
fluctuation in foreign exchange rates would not have any impact on reported non-monetary assets and liabilities.

The table below sets forth in United States dollars, the Company’s reporting currency, a summary of the
monetary assets and liabilities held in rubles at December 31, 2004 and 2003.

(In Thousands)
2004 2003

Monetary Assets
Cashand Cash Equivalents ........ ...ttt iiiiiiiii e $ 3,651 $19,166
Restricted Cash ... ... . i e e 13,035 6,291
Securities Held for Sale .. ... ..o it i e e 36,713 28,770
10 1117 SO 2,182 1,765

$55,581  $55,992
Monetary Liabilities
Dividend Payable . ............cciiiiiiiii $13,035 $ 6,291
Taxes Payable . ...... . .. 196 1,390
Deferred TaXes ... .oit i e e e 2,132 1,798
ONET . oo e e 959 599

$16,322  $10,078
Net POSIHON & . ottt et e e e e e $39,259  $45914

The Company indirectly invests in equity instruments of privately-held companies through its approximately
52% interest in the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund and its approximately 8% interest in the Prospect
Poland Fund. Investments in privately held companies by the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund are
recorded at cost in long-term investments. With respect to the Company’s limited partnership interest in the
Prospect Poland Fund, such interests are recorded in Polish Venture Capital Investment using the equity method of
accounting. The Company is exposed to market risk as it relates to the market value of its indirect investments in
privately held companies. The carrying value of the Company’s interest in the Prospect Poland Fund decreased by
approximately $393,000 during 2004, and included the Company’s proportional share of: a return of capital of
$549,000, an unrealized loss on the write-down of an investment of approximately $81,000, operating expenses of
approximately $51,000; offset partially by a realized gain on the sale of three investments of approximately
$288,000. For the twelve months ended 2003, the Company wrote down its investment by approximately $154,000,
reflecting the Company’s proportional share of an investment write-down of approximately $173,000,
approximately $50,000 of operating expenses and a gain on the sale of investments of approximately $69,000.

The PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund is also invested in equity instruments of public companies,
which are classified as available-for-sale pursuant to SFAS No. 115. Those publicly traded equity investments
that have evinced a sufficient breadth and scope of market activity are valued based on the quoted price for such
securities according to the Russian Trading System and are recorded in long-term marketable securities.
Investments that do not have a readily determinable fair value are recorded in long term investments at cost with
adjustments for other than temporary impairment. These available-for-sale equity investments, primarily in oil
and gas companies, energy companies and the telecommunications industry, are subject to significant
fluctuations in fair value due to the volatility of the stock market and the industries in which these companies
participate. As of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, the fair value of equity investments contained in
long-term marketable securities aggregated $13.3 million and $10.2 million, respectively. The Company
recorded unrealized gains after deferred taxes and after minority interest of $2.8 million and $2.2 million at
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively, as a separate component of stockholder’s equity.
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Although the breadth of industries represented on the Russian Trading System is severely limited, the Company
attempts to manage its exposure to stock market fluctuations and minimize the impact of stock market declines to
the Company’s earnings and cash flow by increased diversification of the portfolio.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The Company’s financial statements required by Item 8 are submitted as a separate section beginning on
page F-1 at the end of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.

None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of December 31, 2004 (the “Evaluation Date”). Based on such
evaluation, such officers have concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed by the Company
in reports that it files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in applicable Securities and Exchange Commission rules and forms.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have not been any significant changes in the Company’s
internal controls over financial reporting (as such term is defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the
Exchange Act) during the 2004 fourth quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially
affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On December 8, 2004, the Company and Calypso Management entered into an amendment to the amended
and restated administration and liquidation agreement to extend the term of this agreement to October 24, 2006.
In connection with this amendment, Calypso Management entered into an amendment to its employment
agreement with Stephen G. Kasnet, whereby the term of Mr. Kasnet’s employment agreement with Calypso
Management was extended to October 24, 2006 to coincide with the term of the amended and restated
administration and liquidation agreement.

PART I11
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.

DIRECTORS.

Mr. Cogan was elected for a four-year term commencing in October 2001 and expiring at the Company’s
annual general meeting immediately following the fifth anniversary of the Spin-off. All other directors were
elected for a five-year term commencing in June 2000 and expiring at the annual general meeting immediately
following the fifth anniversary of the Spin-off. '

Name ) Age

John F. Cogan, Jr .. ... 78
John D. Curtin, Jr ..o e 72
W.ReId Sanders . . ... .ottt e 55
John H. Valentine . . .. ... oot e e e e e 80




JOHN F. COGAN, JR. has been a Director of Harbor Global since October 2001. Mr. Cogan is Deputy
Chairman and Director of Pioneer Global Asset Management S.p.A. He is also Non-Executive Chairman of the
Board and Director of Pioneer and Chairman and a Director of Pioneer Investment Management, Inc., President
and a Director of Pioneer Funds Distributor, Chairman and President of the Pioneer Group of Mutual Funds, a
Director of Pioneer Alternative Investments Management Limited (Ireland). Mr. Cogan is also President and
Director of Pioneer Alternative Investments Management Ltd. (Bermuda) formerly Momentum Asset
Management Limited) and affiliated entities. Mr. Cogan has been a Director of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund since 1995. From 1963 to October 24, 2000, he was President, chief Executive Officer and a
Director of Pioneer Group, Inc. From 1978 to 1980, he was Chairman of the Investment Company Institute
(“ICT”) and is currently a member of the Board of Governors of the ICL. From 1983 to 1986, Mr. Cogan was a
member of the Board of Governors of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. and was a member of
its Legal Advisory Board from 1988 through 1994. From 1987 to 1994, he was Chairman of ICI Mutual
Insurance Company and currently is a Director. Since 2000, Mr. Cogan is of Counsel at Wilmer, Cutler
Pickering, Hale and Dorr LLP. Prior to 2000, he was Chairman and was a Partner at Hale and Dorr LLP.

JOHN D. CURTIN, JR. has been a Director of Harbor Global since June 2000. Mr. Curtin served as a
Director of Pioneer from February 2000 to October 2000. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Curtin was the Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Aearo Corporation, a provider of personal safety equipment. Prior to
1995, Mr. Curtin was the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Cabot Corporation, a global
specialty chemicals and materials company. Mr. Curtin currently serves as a Director of Nano-C, Inc. and
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management.

W. REID SANDERS has been a Director of Harbor Global since June 2000, Mr. Sanders served as a
Director of Pioneer from February 2000 to October 2000. Prior to retiring in 1999, Mr. Sanders was a Director
and Executive Vice President of Southeastern Asset Management, Inc., an investment management firm that he
co-founded in 1975. He also served as President of the Longleaf Partners Mutual Funds. In addition, Mr. Sanders
serves as a Trustee of The Hugo Dixon Foundation and Rhodes College, Trustee and member of the Executive
Committee of the Dixon Gallery and Gardens, Trustee of the Campbell Foundation, Trustee of Jefferson Scholars
at the University of Virginia, Chairman of the Board of Trustees of the Hutchinson School, Director of
Independent Bank, Trustee of SSM Venture Partners and Director of PFIOGLOBAL Asset Management.

JOHN H. VALENTINE has been Chairman of the Board of Directors of Harbor Global since June 2000.
Mr. Valentine served as a Director of Pioneer from 1985 to October 2000. Mr. Valentine is a Trustee of Boston
Medical Center and formerly served as Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors and Treasurer of that institution.
From 1975 to 1980, Mr. Valentine was a consultant to T.A. Associates, a manager of venture capital. From 1972
to 1975, Mr. Valentine was a partner of Tucker Anthony & R.L. Day, a member of the New York Stock
Exchange. Mr. Valentine is a member of the Advisory Committees of the Thompson Island Outward Bound
Education Center and was a Trustee of that institution. In addition, Mr. Valentine is a member of the Advisory
Committee of Phontonics Laboratory at Boston University. He is also on the Advisory Committee of the
Goldman School of Dentistry at Boston University and is a Director of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment
Fund.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND KEY EMPLOYEES
The following table sets forth information concerning the individuals who are executive officers of Harbor

Global. Each individual has been elected to the office indicated and serves at the discretion of the Harbor Global
Board of Directors.

Name 1_&2 Position

Stephen G. Kasnet ................ ... ... 59 President and Chief Executive Officer

Donald H-Hunter ................. ..., 48  Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial
Officer
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STEPHEN G. KASNET has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of Harbor Global since June
2000 and has been President of PREA since 1996. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Kasnet was Executive Vice President
of Pioneer and the President of Pioneer Global Investments, a division of Pioneer. From 1995 to 1998, Mr. Kasnet
was a Vice President of Pioneer. Mr. Kasnet served as a Managing Director of First Winthrop Corporation and
Winthrop Financial Associates. Mr. Kasnet currently serves as a Director of PIOGLOBAL Asset Management and
PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund. He is also President of Pioglobal Omega, PIOGlobal Corporation and
Pioglobal First Russia. In addition, Mr. Kasnet serves as Chairman of Rubicon Limited, Chairman of Columbia
Labs Inc. and a Director of Republic Engineered Products Inc. Mr. Kasnet served as Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Warren Bancorp and Warren Five Cents Savings Bank from 1986 to 2002. Mr. Kasnet has served as
President and Chief Executive Officer for Calypso Management since June 2000.

DONALD H. HUNTER has been Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Harbor Global
since June 2000. From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Hunter was the Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of
Pioneer Global Investments, a division of Pioneer. From 1992 to 1998, Mr. Hunter was the Manager of
International Finance at Pioneer. Prior to 1992, Mr. Hunter served in various finance roles at Pioneer and General
Electric Company. Mr. Hunter serves as a Director of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund. He is Vice
President and Treasurer of Pioglobal Omega, PIOGlobal Corporation, Pioglobal First Russia. and PREA L.L.C.
Mr. Hunter has served as Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer for Calypso
Management since June 2000.

SECTION 16(A) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires the Company’s directors,
officers and shareholders who own more than 10% of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities to file
reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Based solely
upon a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5 (and amendments thereto) furnished to the Company during or in respect of
the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, the Company is not aware of any director or officer who has not timely
filed reports required by Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act in respect of fiscal year 2004.

CODE OF ETHICS

Code of Ethics. The Board of Directors of Harbor Global has adopted the Harbor Global Code of Ethics.
This Code of Ethics applies to Harbor Global’s officers and employees. If the Company makes any substantive
amendments to this Code of Ethics or grants any waiver, including any implicit waiver, from a provision of this
code with respect to its executive officers, the nature of the amendment or waiver will be promptly disclosed to
the Company’s shareholders.

A copy of the Harbor Global Code of Ethics will be provided to any person without charge hpon written,
request by any shareholder to Harbor Global, One Faneuil Hall Marketplace, Boston, MA 02109, Attention:
Donald H. Hunter.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION ™~ = 7~ 7~ 77~

The Company does not have a Compensation Committee or other board committee performing similar
functions. The Company’s Board of Directors made all decisions regarding compensation. None of the members
of the Board of Directors is currently or has been, at any time since the Company’s formation, one of its officers
or employees. None of the Company’s executive officers serves as a member of the Board of Directors or
compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers serving as a member of the
Company’s Board of Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND FINANCIAL EXPERT

Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is a separately designated committee established by the Board of
Directors in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Audit
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Committee is comprised of Messrs. Curtin, Sanders and Valentine, each of whom is independent under the
applicable rules of the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. All of the members of the Audit
Committee are financially literate and qualified to review the Company’s financial statements.

Audit Committee Financial Expert. The Board of Directors has determined that John D. Curtin, Jr.
qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as such term is defined in Item 401(h)(2) of Regulation S-K
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Compensation of Directors

Each Harbor Global director is entitled to receive $5,000 per meeting of the Board of Directors attended. In
addition, directors of Harbor Global are entitled to be reimbursed for out of pocket expenses incurred in
connection with attendance to any meeting of the Board of Directors or any committee meeting of the Board of
Directors. Three of the directors were paid $30,000 each and one director was paid $25,000 in director’s fees in
2004.

On October 18, 2004, the Company’s shareholders approved the Amended and Restated Non-Employee
Director Share Plan, which amends and restates the Non-Employee Director Share Plan to both increase the
number of Common Shares authorized for issuance under the plan from 25,000 Common Shares to an aggregate
of 48,000 Common Shares and extends the term of the plan to be coterminous with any extension of the time
period permitted for the operation and liquidation of the Company’s assets, as may be determined by the Board
of Directors from time to time in accordance with the Company’s Memorandum of Association. The Company’s
Board of Directors approved the Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Share Plan on June 4, 2004.
Prior to the approval of the Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director Share Plan, the plan was set to
terminate on October 24, 2005 pursuant to its terms. Except as described above, the Amended and Restated Non-
Employee Director Share Plan does not amend, alter or change any other terms of the plan. During fiscal year
2004, each director received 1,500 common shares pursuant to the plan.

Compensation of Executive Officers

Although Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter are executive officers of Harbor Global, Harbor Global does not
directly pay compensation to these individuals. Instead, the amended and restated administration and liquidation
agreement between Harbor Global and Calypso Management provides that Harbor Global will pay the operating
expenses of Calypso Management, including compensation of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter.
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The following table sets forth information regarding compensation earned by the Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Operating Officer of the Company during fiscal years 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Annual Long Term
Compensation Compensation
Restricted  Securities
Fiscal Salary Bonus Stock Underlying All Other. .
Name and Principal Position Year $) $)1) Awards($) Options(¥) Compensation(2)
Stephen G. Kasnet . ................... 2004 325,000 325,000 — — 258,419
President, 2003 325,000 325,000 — — 374,352
Chief Executive Officer 2002 325,000 325,000 — — 2,388,927
DonaldH. Hunter ..................... 2004 250,000 275,000 — — 146,952
Chief Operating Officer, 2003 250,000 250,000 — — 213,125
Chief Financial Officer 2002 250,000 250,000 — — 637,453
{1) Bonuses are paid by Harbor Global through Calypso Management under a bonus plan for the Company’s
officers that enables Mr. Kasnet to receive an annual bonus of up to 100% of his salary and Mr. Hunter to
receive an annual bonus of up to 110% of his salary, in each case based upon the achievement of
performance goals that are established by the Harbor Global Board of Directors. All bonuses were reviewed
and approved by the Board of Directors.
(2) Fiscal year 2004 includes contributions of $22,092 to each of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, made by Calypso

Management under its 401(k) plan. Payments of $62,360 and $17,633 were made to Mr. Kasnet and Mr.
Hunter, respectively, in 2004 as supplemental pension payments by Calypso Management. Additionally,
payments of $173,967 and $107,227 were made in 2004 to Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, respectively,
representing a portion of the management fee paid to Calypso Management by Harbor Global in connection
with the distribution to Harbor Global shareholders in 2004. Fiscal year 2003 includes contributions of
$20,742 to each of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, made by Calypso Management under its 401(K) plan.
Payments of $62,360 and $17,633, respectively, were made to Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter in 2003 as
supplemental pension payments by Calypso Management. Additionally, payments of $291,250 and
$174,750 were made in 2003 to Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, respectively, representing a portion of the
management fee paid to Calypso Management by Harbor Global in connection with the distribution made to
Harbor Global shareholders in 2003. Fiscal year 2002 includes contributions of $15,161 to each of Mr.
Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, made by Calypso Management under its 401(k) plan. Payments of $62,360 and
$17,633 were made in 2002 to Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter, respectively, as supplemental pension payments
by Calypso Management. Additionally, payments of $1,007,766 and $604,659 were made in 2002 to Mr.
Kasnet and Mr. Hunter representing a portion of the management fee paid to Calypso Management by
Harbor Global in connection with the distributions made to Harbor Global shareholders prior to and in
October 2002, Mr. Kasnet’s 2002 compensation also includes a $1,800,000 signing and retention bonus and
$3,640 for life insurance coverage.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND
REILATED STOCKHOGLDER MATTERS.

The following table presents the number of Harbor Global common shares beneficially owned as of

March 1, 2005, unless otherwise indicated, by:

— each person or entity known by Harbor Global to own more than five percent of its issued and
outstanding common shares;

— each director of Harbor Global;
— each of the executive officers of Harbor Global; and

—all directors and officers of Harbor Global as a group.
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Unless otherwise indicated, each person or entity has sole voting and investment power with respect to the
shares listed opposite such person’s or entity’s name. Unless otherwise indicated, the percentages set forth below
are based upon a total of 5,667,311 common shares outstanding as of March 1, 2005.

Number Percent Of

Oof Outstanding
w Shares Shares
John F. Cogam, Jrd .. oo e e e 802,499(1) 14.16%
Pioneer Investment
Management USA Inc

60 State Street
Boston, MA 02109

Gabelli Funds, LLC . .. ... e e e e e e 751,640(2) 13.26%
One Corporate Center
Rye, NY 10580

S . Muoio & Co. LLC ... e 748,725(3) 13.12%
509 Madison Avenue, Suite 406
New York, NY 10022

Py GO . oo e e 536,389(4) 9.47%
599 Lexington Avenue
New York, NY 10022
Deutsche Bank AG .. ... ..t e e e e 530,004(5) 9.35%
Taunusanlage 12, D-60325
Frankfurt on Main, Germany
CItigroup INC .. ..o e e e 470,800(6) 8.31%
425 Park Avenue
New York, NY 10043
Tudor Proprietary Trading, LL.C. ... ... . i et 320,540(7)  5.66%
1275 King Street
Greenwich, CT 06831
W.Reld Sanders+ ... e 36,000 *
John H. Valentine+ ... ... e e e e 16,600 *
John D, Curtin Jrd .o e e 16,000 *
Stephen G. Kasnet+ . . ... . e 33,333(8) *
Donald H. Hunter+ . ... o e i e et et e aas 1,051 *
All directors and officers of Harbor 905,483 15.98%

Global a3 a group (6 Persons) . ... ....couuit e oottt

*  Denotes ownership of less than 1% of outstanding shares of Harbor Global common shares.

+ Denotes a director or executive officer of Harbor Global.

(1) Consists of 703,631 common shares with respect to which Mr. Cogan exercises sole voting and investment
power and 98,868 common shares with respect to which Mr. Cogan exercises shared voting and investment
power. This information is based solely on information provided by the shareholder in Amendment No. 1 to
Schedule 13D, dated December 8, 2000 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on
December 8, 2000 as well as Form 4, dated October 24, 2004 and filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on October 25, 2004.

(2) Consists of common shares held by a variety of investment advisory and investment company clients, over
which shares GAMCO Investors, Inc., Gabelli Funds, LI.C, Gabelli Asset Management, Inc. or one of their
affiliates exercises sole voting and investment power except that GAMCO Investors, Inc. does not have the
power to vote 11,200 shares reported as beneficially owned by it and subject to certain exceptions reported
in Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D/A, dated March 14, 2003, and filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 14, 2003. This information is based solely on information provided by Gabelli Asset
Management Inc. in such Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13D/A.
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(3) S.Muoio & Co. LLC exercises shared voting and investment power over these shares. The foregoing is
based solely on information provided by the shareholder in Amendment No. 6 to Schedule 13G/A, dated
February 11, 2005, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 14, 2005 and Form
4, dated February 16, 2005 and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 16, 2005." .

(4) The reported number of shares is based solely on information provided by the shareholder in Amendment
No. 6 to Schedule 13G/A, dated February 9, 2005, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissioh '
on February 10, 2005. . o

(5) Consists of common shares over which Deutsche Bank AG exercises sole voting and investrient power. The
foregoing is based solely on information provided by the shareholder in Amendment No. 1 to Schedule 13G,
dated January 28, 2005, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on January 31, 2005.

(6) Consists of common shares which Citigroup Inc. (“Citigroup”) indirectly beneficially owns, through its
holding company structure representing, including: (i) 200,000 common shares beneficially owned by
Citigroup Financial Products Inc. (“CFP”) over which CFP and Citigroup exercise shared voting and
investment power; (ii) 5,800 common shares beneficially owned by a subsidiary of Citigroup Global
Markets Holdings Inc. (“CGM Holdings™) over which CGM Holdings and Citigroup exercise shared voting
and investment power; and (iii) 265,000 common shares beneficially owned by certain other subsidiaries of
Citigroup over which Citigroup exercises shared voting and investment power. The foregoing is based
solely on information provided by Citigroup, Salomon and SSB Holdings in Amendment 1 to Schedule
13D, dated November 15, 2004, and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 15,
2004.

(7) Consists of common shares over which Tudor Proprietary Trading, L.L.C. exercises shared voting and
investment power with Paul Tudor Jones, III. Because Mr. Jones is the indirect controlling equity holder of
Tudor Proprietary Trading, L.L.C., Mr. Jones may be deemed to beneficially own the shares. Mr. Jones
disclaims such beneficial ownership. The foregoing is based solely on information provided by the
shareholder in Amendment No.1 to Schedule 13G/A, dated February 1, 2002, and filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on February 5, 2002.

(8) Consists of 3,353 common shares with respect to which Mr. Kasnet exercises sole voting and investment
power and 29,980 common shares with respect to which Mr. Kasnet exercised shared voting and investment
power.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans. The following table sets forth
information as of December 31, 2004 with respect to the Non-Employee Director Share Plan, the only
compensation plan under which equity securities of the Company are authorized for issuance.

(a) (b) (©)
Number of securities Weighted-average Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon exercise price of available for future issuance
exercise of outstanding under equity compensation
cutstanding options, options, warrants plans (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights and rights reflected in column (2))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders ...................... None N/A 24,000
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders . ..................... None N/A None
Total .......... ... . i, None N/A 24,000
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

On July 10, 2003, the Company entered into an amended and restated administration and liquidation
agreement with Calypso Management, pursuant to which Calypso Management manages the liquidation of the
Company and operates the Company’s assets pending their liquidation. Calypso Management is owned and
operated by Stephen G. Kasnet, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Donald H. Hunter, the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Kasnet is Calypso Management’s President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr.
Hunter is Calypso Management’s Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Calypso Management
performs its services pursuant to operating plans and budgets approved by the Harbor Global Board of Directors
in accordance with the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.

The amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement provides that Harbor Global pays the
operating expenses of Calypso Management incurred in connection with the provision of services to Harbor
Global. These operating expenses include annual salaries for Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter of $325,000 and
$250,000, respectively. In addition, Mr. Kasnet is eligible for an annual bonus of up to 100% of base salary and
Mr. Hunter is eligible for an annual bonus of up to 110% of base salary, depending upon the achievement of
performance goals established by the Harbor Global Board of Directors. In addition, the operating expenses of
Calypso Management that are reimbursed by Harbor Global include the salaries of other employees of Calypso
Management. Calypso Management provides the services of Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter and other employees to
act as officers and employees of Harbor Global. The provision of services to Harbor Global by Calypso
Management, Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter is exclusive, and Calypso Management, Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter
may not render services to other persons or entities without the prior written consent of the Harbor Global Board
of Directors.

As compensation for its provision of services to Harbor Global, Calypso Management receives a portion of
the net proceeds distributed to shareholders from the liquidation of Harbor Global’s assets, generally according to
the following schedule:

— with respect to the first $36 million in net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive
a payment equal to 10% of such net proceeds;

— with respect to the next $72 million in net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive
a payment equal to 7.5% of such net proceeds; and

— with respect to any additional net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive a
payment equal to 10% of such net proceeds.

Net proceeds do not include any unexpended portion of the approximate $19,100,000 contributed by
Pioneer to Harbor Global at the time of the Spin-off. However, because Harbor Global entered into a transaction
in which it was released from its indirect obligation to fulfill its existing capital commitment of approximately
$5.4 million to the Polish Real Estate Fund, $5.4 million of the amount contributed by Pioneer is included in the
calculation of net proceeds. In addition, the proceeds received by Goldfields II in connection with the sale of its
Ghanaian gold mine to Ashanti are not subject to the preceding schedule. Instead, Calypso Management will
receive only 5% of the Ashanti proceeds that are distributed to shareholders.

In addition, if an individual, entity or group acquires at least 80% of the Company’s outstanding common
shares or the Company is a party to a merger, reorganization or similar business combination and the
shareholders immediately prior to such transaction cease to own 50% of the outstanding common shares and
voting power entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the resulting entity (referred to as a deemed
sale), Calypso Management is entitled to receive a portion of the consideration, in accordance with the
compensation schedule described above, as would be received by all shareholders if all of the outstanding
common shares were sold at the valuation of Harbor Global based on the per share consideration received by
each shareholder who sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of shares in the transaction. Also, in the event of a
change in control (as defined in the agreement) coupled with a material change in the engagement status of
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Calypso Management or the employment status of its principal officers, Calypso Management will be paid a cash
amount equal to a portion of the value of the underlying assets, in accordance with the compensation.schedule
described above, with such value determined pursuant to a predetermined valuation schedule. :

With respect to ongoing asset sales, Harbor Global accrues management fees at the earlier of (1) the formal
declaration by the Board of Directors of a distribution and (2) the time when a distributable amount is estimable
following the sale or liquidation of an asset. Harbor Global will also accrue management fees when a distribution
to Calypso Management is triggered following a deemed sale of the Company or a change in control as defined
in the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.

On October 18, 2004, pursuant to the Company’s memorandum of association, the Board of Directors
unanimously authorized the Company to continue operating its assets for an additional one year period or
through October 24, 2006, unless and until the Company has distributed all of its assets to its shareholders to the
extent permitted by the Bermuda Companies Act of 1981. Accordingly, on December 8, the Company and
Calypso Management entered into an amendment to the amended and restated administration and liquidation
agreement extending the term of this agreement to October 24, 2006. Harbor Global may terminate the
agreement in the event of:

— Mr. Kasnet’s death or disability or other termination of his employment with Calypso Management;

— an uncured failure by Calypso Management to follow a reasonable direction of the Harbor Global Board
of Directors;

— a material breach by Mr. Kasnet of his employment agreement with Calypso Management; or

— an act by Calypso Management in connection with its services to Harbor Global constituting bad faith,
fraud or willful misconduct.

Calypso Management is not entitled to the payments described above following a termination of the
agreement. In addition, the agreement will be automatically terminated in the event of a change in control (as
defined in the agreement) of Harbor Global occurs coupled with a material change in the engagement status of
Calypso Management or the employment status of its principal officers. In such event, Harbor Global’s
obligation to pay Calypso Management a cash amount equal to a portion of the value of the underlying assets will
survive the termination of the agreement pursuant to a predetermined schedule.

As part of the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement, Calypso Management has
agreed to customary confidentiality and non-competition covenants with respect to Harbor Global.

Mr. Kasnet and Mr. Hunter each entered into employment agreements with Calypso Management as of
August 8, 2000. The employment agreements provide for salaries and bonuses as described above in connection
with the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement. Mr. Kasnet’s employment may be
terminated by Mr. Kasnet upon 120 days prior written notice to Calypso Management and Harbor Global. The
term of Mr. Kasnet’s employment agreement expires with the term of the amended and restated administration
and liquidation agreement. The employment agreement provides that Mr. Kasnet will be entitled to receive at
least 50% of the amounts paid by Harbor Global to Calypso Management from the liquidation of Harbor Global’s
assets. However, Mr. Kasnet’s allocation percentage is reduced to a minimum of 33%3% of amounts paid by
Harbor Global to Calypso Management with respect to distributions to the Company’s shareholders of more than
$36 million in the aggregate and up to $108 million in the aggregate. Calypso Management at the dlrectlon of
the Harbor Global Board of Directors, may terminate Mr. Kasnet in"the event he:"

— materially breaches the employment agreement or the administration and liquidation agreement;
— is convicted of a felony;
— fails to follow a reasonable direction of the Harbor Global Board of Directors; or

— becomes disabled.
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Mr. Hunter’s employment agreement provides that Mr. Hunter’s employment with Calypso Management is
at will, subject to termination by either Calypso Management or Mr. Hunter upon 60 days prior written notice.
The employment agreement provides that generally, Mr. Hunter is entitled to receive at least 30% of the amounts
paid by Harbor Global to Calypso Management from the liquidation of Harbor Global’s assets. However, Mr.
Hunter is entitled to receive at least 40% of the amounts paid by Harbor Global to Calypso Management from the
liquidation of Harbor Global’s assets with respect to distributions to the Company’s shareholders of more than
$36 million in the aggregate and up to $108 million in the aggregate.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES.

The aggregate fees billed by PwC for each of the last two fiscal years ending December 31, 2004 and
December 31, 2003, was approximately $254,000 and $229,000 respectively.

PwC did not bill nor did the Company pay any fees for audit related services, tax fees or any other fees for
non-audit services during fiscal years 2004 and 2003. For the purposes of this disclosure, in accordance with the
Securities and Exchange Commission definitions and rules, “audit fees” are fees paid to PwC, as applicable, for
professional services for the audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statements included in the Company’s
Form 10-K and the review of the Company’s financial statements included in Form 10-Qs or services that are
normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, such as
statutory audits required for certain of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries. “Audit-related fees” are fees for
assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the
Company’s financial statements. “Tax fees” are fees for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning. “All other
fees” are fees for any services not included in the first three categories. The Audit Committee is responsible for
appointing, setting compensation and overseeing the work of the Company’s independent auditor. The Audit
Committee reviews all requests for services by the independent auditor to determine whether such services are
compatible with maintaining the independence of the independent auditor. Each request must be specific as to the
particular services provided, and the audit committee approves each engagement for services to be performed by
the independent auditor for the Company or its subsidiaries. The Audit Committee pre-approved the fiscal 2004
audit engagement.

PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of or are included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K:
1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements Filed as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

2.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES:

Financial statement schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is
shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
thereto.

3. EXHIBITS:
The exhibits listed in the Exhibit Index filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Seéurities Exchange Act of 1934, the

Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly
authorized.

HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY.LTD.

Dated: March 23, 2005 ‘ By: /s/ DoNALD H. HUNTER

Donald H. Hunter,
Chief Operating Officer
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed
below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature liﬁ _)@t_e
/s/  STEPHEN G. KASNET Principal Executive Officer March 23, 2005
Stephen G. Kasnet ‘ ‘
/s/ _DoNALD H. HUNTER Principal Operating Officer, March 23, 2005
Donald H. Hunter Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer
/s/_JouN F. COGAN JR. Director : March 23, 2005

John F. Cogan Jr.

/s/ Jonn D. CURTIN JR. Director March 23, 2005
John D. Curtin Jr.

/s/  W.REID SANDERS Director March 23, 2005
W. Reid Sanders

/s/  JoHN H. VALENTINE Director March 23, 2005
John H. Valentine
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Harbor Global Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Harbor Global Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended
December 31, 2004. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. The financial statements
of the Company as of December 31, 2002 and for the year then ended were audited by other auditors whose
report dated January 24, 2003 expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall’
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Harbor Global Company Limited and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003, and

the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31, -

2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
February 28, 2005
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

Harbor Global Company Limited
Boston, MA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of earnings, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows of
Harbor Global Company Limited (a Bermuda limited duration company) (*“the Company”) and subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2002. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated results of the Company’s operations and its cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2002, in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

January 24, 2003
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HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
(in Thousands Except
Per Share Amounts)
Revenues:
Real Estate Rental Revenue .............. it iniinineninnnn.. $ 788 § 7451 $ 7,714
Other INCOME . . ..o o e e e e e 4,433 3,250 2,057
Total REVENUES . ..o ottt e e e 12,319 10,701 9,771
Operating Expenses: '
Salary and Benefit Expenses . ......... . ... .. i i, 4,640) (4,178) (2,979
Facility EXpenses . . .. ..ottt i e (1,517  (1,525) (1,299)
Building and Property Management Expenses ....................... (2,051) (2,456) (2,375)
Management Fee Expense .. .......... .. oo i (2,907 (3,131) (2,836)
Other EXpenses .. ...ttt it et o (6,251) (4,836) (6,504)
Total Operating EXpenses . ........ ..., (17,366) (16,126) (15,988)
Lossfrom Operations ............c.ovouiiiienneenienennnnn.s 5,047y  (5/425) (6,217)
Other Income (Expense):
Net Unrealized and Realized Gains on Equity and Fixed Income
SO CUIIES v\ vttt e e e e e 2,045 24,813 12,002
Gain on Extinguishment of Note Payable ........................... ' — 1,250 —
Early Settlement of Note Receivable .............................. — (191) —
Gainon Saleof Gold Option ............. . .ot — - 875 —
Interest InCome, NEt . .. .ottt e 2,029 2,525 3,093
Total OtherIncome . ... ... ... .. . i, 4,074 29,272 15,095
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations before Provision for
Income Taxes, Minority Interest And Equity Loss on Investment . . . (973) 23,847 8,878
Provision forIncome Taxes ...........ciuiiiiniiinininiinnnnennn, 1,922) (6,470) - (3,866)
(Loss) Income from Continuing Operations before Minority Interest
and Equity Losson Investment. .............. ... .. ....... (2,895 17,377 5,012
Minority Interest EXpense ... ..., (1,269) (9,386) (3,938)
Equity Gain (Loss) on Venture Capital Investments . ...................... 156 (154) (415)
Net (Loss) Income from Continuing Operations Before Discontinued
OPerations . ... ..ttt e et e e (4,008) 7,837 659
Discontinued Operations:
Gain on Disposal ... ..o e L= — 424
Net (Loss)INCOME .+ .\ oottt et e e $ 4,008 $ 7,837 $ 1,083

(Loss) Earnings Per Share:
Continuing Operations:

Basic and Diluted (I.oss) Earnings Per Share ........................ $ ©71) % 139 § 0.12
Discontinued Operations:

Basic and Diluted Eamnings Per Share . ... ........ .. ... ... ... — — 0.08
Basic and Diluted Net (Loss) Earnings Per Share . ........................ $ (07D $ 139 $ 020
Weighted Average Basic and Diluted Shares Outstanding .. ................ 5,662 5,656 5,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2004 and 2003

2004 2003
(in Thousands Except
Per Share Amounts)
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVALENES . . ... ..o\ttt e i $ 7,754 $ 23,957
Restricted Cash .. .o ottt e e e 13,035 6,291
Marketable SeCUIItIES . ...t it it e e e e e e 17,456 16,217
Accounts Receivable ... ... . i 986 1,233
Notes Receivable . . ..ot e e e e e e — 4,700
Prepaid EXpenses . ... ... e 1,880 1,569
Other CUTent ASSelS ..ot v ittt ittt et ettt et et e e et 7 8
Total CUITENE ASSEES . v vttt ettt ettt e et e et et s et et 41,118 53,975
Polish Venture Capital Investment . ........... ...t tinnni i 273 666
Marketable SECUTTHES . . . oo ot et et e e e e e e e e e e 19,998 19,197
Long-term Investments ... ....... .. o i e 8,715 2,375
Building . . ..o e 21,726 22,035
Other Long-term ASSetS ... ... ...ttt e et 1,190 1,060
GoOdWill ... e e e e 1,253 1,253
TOtAl ASSEES © v v vttt et e e e e e $94,273 $100,561
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Accounts Payable ... ... ... e $ 1,140 $ 1,262
Dividends Payable . ... ...ttt e e 13,035 6,291
ACCTUBd EXPENSES . .ottt e 2,206 1,727
Accrued Fees Payable to Calypso Management . ........... ... ... ... it 739 708
Foreign Taxes Payable . ............ oot i it 196 1,407
Deferred TaKes .. o.vt it i ittt e e e 241 376
Total Current Liabilitles ... ... .oov ittt i e et e 17,557 11,771
Deferred Taxes . ..ottt i e e e 2,039 1,613
Total Liabilities . ..\ ovn ettt it e e e 19,596 13,384
Minority INtETest . .. ..ottt i e e e e 27,109 32,453
Commitments/Contingencies (refertoNote 13) . ...... ... ... ... ... it
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common shares, par value $.0025 per share; authorized 48,000,000 shares; 5,667,311 and

5,661,311 shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,

TeSPECHVElY . . L. e 14 14
Preferred shares par value $.01 per share; authorized 1,000,000 shares; none issued . .. ... — —
Paid-in Capital ... ... o e e 48,284 52,282
Accumudated Deficit . ... ..ot i e e (4,541) (533)
Other Comprehensive Income .. ........ . i i e

Net Unrealized Gains on Available for Sale Marketable Securities ................ 3,811 2,961
Total Stockholders’ EQUity .. ......coouuittit it 47,568 54,724
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ EQUity . ........c..covuiiein i ernnann. $94,273 $100,561

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For The Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Accumulated Total

Common Shares QOther . Stockholders’
Shares Paid-in  Accumulated Comprehensive Comprehensive Equity
Issued Par  Capital Deficit Income Income (deficit)
{Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Amounts)
Balance, January 1,2002 ... ... 5,649,311 14 62,768 (9.453) 3,304 56,633
SharesIssued ............... 6,000 — 44 : : - 44
NetIncome ................ 1,083 1,083 ~ 1,083
Other Comprehensive Income:
Net Unrealized Gains on
Marketable Securities (Net
of deferred taxes of $264
and minority interest of
$558) . 629 629 629
Comprehensive Income . ... ... $ 1,712
Acquisition of IFC Interest .. .. 1,860 1,860
Distribution ................ (5,090) (5,090)
Balance, December 31,2002 ... 5,655,311 $ 14 $59,582 $(8,370) $3,933 $55,159
SharesIssued . .............. 6,000 — 59 59
NetIncome ................ 7,837 7,837 7,837
Other Comprehensive Income:
Net Unrealized Gains on
Marketable Securities (Net
of deferred tax credit of
$738 and minority interest .
income of $1,366) ....... 972) 972) 972)
Comprehensive Income . ... ... $ 6,865
Restricted Unit Award (See
Noteld) ................. 541 . 541
Distribution ................ (7,900) (7,900)
Balance, December 31,2003 ... 5,661,311 $ 14 $52,282 $ (533) $2,961 $54,724
SharesIssued ............... 6,000 — 59 59
NetLoss.........c.oovvnnn. (4,008) (4,008) (4,008)
Net Unrealized Gains on
Marketable Securities (Net
of deferred taxes of $427
and minority interest of
$487) . 850 850 350
Comprehensive Income . . .. ... ) $(3,158)
Restricted Unit Award (See ‘ .
Noteld)................. (140) (140)
Distribution ................ (3,917) (3,917)
Balance, December 31,2004 ... 5,667,311 $ 14 $48,284 $(4,541) $3,811 $47,568

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Net (Loss) INCome .. ..ot i i e e e $ (4,008 $ 7,837 $ 1,083
Net Income from Discontinued Operations ..............c...cceiiiinneinnnen.. — — 424
Net (Loss) Income from Continuing Operations . ..........c.ovveerennveean. (4,008) 7,837 659
Adjustments to Reconcile Net (Loss) Income to Net Cash Used In Operating Activities:
Non-cash Interest Income on Note Receivable ................................ — (203) (958)
Restricted Unit Awards .. ... i i e e 169 541 —
Depreciation and AMOItiZation . ... .....ouutt ittt e 1,042 948 994
Unrealized and Realized Gains on Venture Capital, Marketable Securities, and Long-
term Investments, Net ... ... ottt i i i e e e (1,894) (24,813) (12,002)
Gain on Extinguishment of Note Payable ........... ... ... ... ... oo it — (1,250) —
Early Settlement of Note Receivable .......... ... ... ... ... i iiiiiinnn. — 191 —
Gainon Saleof Gold Option ... ... .. . i — (875) —
Non-Cash Compensation to Directors from Common Shares .................... 59 59 44
Minority Interest EXpense .. ...t e 1,269 9,386 3,938
Equity (Gain) Loss on Venture Capital Investments ............... ... ... . ... (156) 154 415
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities—
Other CUITeNt ASSEIS . ... ottt e e et e et et e e e e e (1,793) (2,924) 4,951
Accrued Expenses and Accounts Payable ... ....... ... ... ... ot 359) 97 (2,188)
Total Adjustments and Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities ........... (1,663) (18,689)  (4,806)
Net Cash Used in Continning Operating Activities ........................ (5,671) (10,852) (4,147)
Net Cash Used in Discontinued Operations ..............ccovvveiinnon. — — (100)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
BUIlding . . ot e (389) — —
Purchase of Investments . ......... ..ottt iieaneeeenns (28,031) (32,519) (19,458)
Other Long-term ASSetS .. ... ...ttt it (313) (394) (172)
Purchase of IFC’s shares in Pioglobal First Russia...................oool. — — (450)
Proceeds from Sale of InvesStments ... ...ttt 24,877 58,596 31,050
Net Proceeds from Sale of Russian Timber Operations ......................... — 2,000 5,003
Proceeds from Payment on Note Receivable ............. ... ... .. ... .. ..... 4,700 3,000 2,500
Proceeds from Sale of Gold Option . ...... ... i — 875 —
Proceeds from Prospect Poland Fund ................. ... . ... ..., 549 — —
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities . ............coiiineenennnnan. 1,393 31,558 18,473
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Distributions Paid . ....... ... e 3,917y  (7,900)  (5,090)
Dividends Paid to Minority Interest .............. ... . . it (173) (48) (196)
Purchase of Restricted Uit . ..o ottt ittt et (309) — —
Subsidiary Level Treasury Stock Repurchase . ............ooiiiiiiinn.. (782) — —_
Reclassification of Restricted Cash . ........ ... ... . i, (6,744) 2,568 (1,219)
Payment on Note Payable .. ...... ...t — (3,750) —
Net Cash Used In Financing Activities . .............o i inenneenan.. (11,925)  (9,130)  (6,505)
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents ............................. (16,203) 11,576 7,721
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year .................. oo i, 23,957 12,381 4,660
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year . ..............coiiiiiiiiinneennnn..., $ 7,754 $23957 $ 12,381
Income Taxes Paid . ... it e e $ 2871 $ 5559 § 5,156

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2004

(1) BACKGROUND AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Background

Harbor Global Company Ltd., a Bermuda limited duration company (“Harbor Global” or the “Company™),
was formed in May 2000 as a wholly owned subsidiary of Pioneer Investment Management USA Inc. (formerly
known as The Pioneer Group, Inc.), a Delaware corporation (“Pioneer’), to facilitate the merger between Pioneer
and UniCredito Italiano, S.p.A., an Italian financial institution (“UniCredito”). As a condition to closing the
merger and pursuant to a Distribution Agreement dated as of October 24, 2000 by and among the Company,
Pioneer and Harbor Global II Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Distribution Agreement”),
Pioneer agreed to transfer certain of its assets to Harbor Global and distribute all of the outstanding Harbor Global
common shares to its stockholders. Pioneer transferred to Harbor Global all of the assets required to be transferred
pursuant to the merger agreement and the Distribution Agreement, and on October 24, 2000, Pioneer distributed
all of the outstanding common shares of Harbor Global to its stockholders (the “Spin-off”). Pioneer stockholders
received one Harbor Global common share for every five shares of Pioneer common stock held on that date.

The Company’s primary assets by segment consist of the following:

= Russian real estate management and investment management operations: investment advisory and
management operations

* Real estate management operations: real estate management services including property management
and advisory services

¢ Other:

— approximately $9.4 million in cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held directly by
Harbor Global

— an approximately 8% limited partnership interest in the Prospect Poland Fund

Harbor Global seeks to liquidate its assets in a timely fashion on economically advantageous terms and
continues to operate its assets as going concern businesses until they are liquidated. Harbor Global’s
memorandum of association provides that the liquidation of its assets must be completed upon the earlier of
October 24, 2005, the fifth anniversary of the date of the Spin-off, or the distribution by Harbor Global of all its
assets to its shareholders. On October 18, 2004, pursuant to the Company’s memorandum of association, the
Harbor Global board of directors (“Board of Directors”) unanimously authorized the Company to continue
operating its assets for an additional one year period or through October 24, 2006, unless and until the Company
has distributed all of its assets to its shareholders to the extent permitted by the Bermuda Companies Act of 1981.
If Harbor Global has not liquidated all of its assets before Qctober 24, 2006, the Board of Directors, in its
discretion, may authorize Harbor Global to continue to operate its assets for up to two additional one-year
periods.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements included herein have been prepared using the historical cost basis of
the assets and liabilities and historical results of operations related to the Company’s businesses (“Consolidated
Financial Statements™).

In the opinion of management, the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements contain all adjustments
necessary to present fairly the results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the
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financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 and cash flows of the Company for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Since Harbor Global is a Bermuda limited duration company, the Company expects that for United States
federal income tax purposes it will be taxed as a partnership, and as a result, virtually all United States federal
income tax expenses have been and will be borne by its sharcholders. However, on April 12, 2004, Pioglobal
First Russia, Inc., an indirect subsidiary of the Company, through which a portion of the Company’s Russian real
estate management and investment management operations are conducted, converted from a Delaware
corporation into a Delaware limited liability company, Pioglobal First Russia, LL.C (“Pioglobal First Russia”).
As aresult, the Company anticipates that it will indirectly (through Pioglobal First Russia) incur a United States
federal income tax liability of approximately $1,100,000, which is reported in the provision for income taxes in
the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Otherwise, the income tax provisions and deferred taxes included in
the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements principally relate to the Company’s corporate subsidiaries
that are located primarily in the Russian Federation (“Russia”).

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, PRINCIPLES OF
CONSOLIDATION

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Harbor Global and its majority-owned
subsidiaries. The Company maintains an approximate 8% interest in a limited partnership. Because it is a limited
partner investor, the Company accounts for this investment using the equity method of accounting. Equity gains
and losses from this investment are included in equity gain or loss on venture capital investments on the
accompanying Consolidated Statement of Operations. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been
eliminated from the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Revenue Recognition

Real estate rental revenue is recorded monthly over the terms of the leases on a straight line basis. Other
income is recorded when earned except for dividend income, which is recorded when received. Other income
includes investment management, shareholder services, trust management and other fees, dividend income, and
service revenue. The Company recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, services
have been rendered, the Company’s price is fixed or determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured.

Management Fee

The Company entered into an administration and liquidation agreement with Calypso Management LLC
(“Calypso Management” or “the Manager”), under which the Manager manages the liquidation of the Company
and operates the Company’s assets as going concern businesses until they are liquidated. The Company pays the

F-9




i

HARBOR GLOBAL COMPANY LTD.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{(Continued)
December 31, 2004

expenses of the Manager incurred in connection with its provision of services and a percentage of the net
proceeds realized from the liquidation of its assets that are ultimately distributed to the Company’s shareholders.
The Company incurs management fees on a monthly basis related to the reimbursement of expenses and accrues
management fees related to the distribution of proceeds at the earlier of (1) the formal declaration by the Board
of Directors of a distribution or (2) the time when a distributable amount is estimable following the sale or
liquidation of an asset. Harbor Global will also accrue management fees when a distribution to Calypso
Management is triggered following a Deemed Sale of the Company or a change in control as defined in the
amended and restated administration and liguidation agreement {See note 12).

Cash And Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash
equivalents. All highly liquid investments purchased with a maturity of greater than three months are classified
as marketable securities.

Prepaid Expenses

Advertising expenses are expensed as incurred. Insurance premiums are expensed on a straight-line basis
over 12 months.

Polish Venture Capital Investment

The Company reports its approximately 8% limited partnership interest in the Prospect Poland Fund on the
equity basis of accounting. No market quotes are available for the venture capital investments. These investments
are valued at fair value, as determined by Prospect Poland Fund’s management. The Company recorded a gain on
its investment of approximately $207,000 in 2004 and wrote-down its investment by $102,000 and $325,000 in
2003 and 2002, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 the Company incurred
approximately $51,000, $52,000 and $90,000, respectively of operating expenses, representing its approximately
8% share. Additionally, during 2004, the Company received a cash distribution of approximately $549,000 from
the Prospect Poland Fund representing its proportionate share of proceeds from the sale of two of its portfolio
investments.

Summarized financial information for the Prospect Poland Fund is as follows:

2004 2003
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data, at December 31,
CUITENE ABSBIS . oo v\ e ettt ettt e et e e e e ettt e et $ 467 $ 893
INOD-CUITEIE ASSEES . o vttt e ettt e e et e e e et e et e 3,000 7,447
Current Liabilities . ... ... .ottt i it et et et (85) (62)
Partners’ Capital, at December 31 ... ... . ... ... . i $3,382  $8,278

2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)

Operating Data, for the year ended December 31,
Net Operating Loss .. ..ottt $(595) $ (664) $(1,118)
Net Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss) from Investments ........ 2,253 (1,747)  (3,518)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Partner’s Capital from Operations . .. .... $1,658 $(2,411) $(4,636)
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Current Marketable Securities

United States Treasury securities are classified as held-to-maturity and are recorded at cost. Russian
Government and Municipal securities are classified as trading securities and are marked-to-market, with
unrealized gains or losses reported in the Consolidated Statement of Operations pursuant to Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity
Securities” (“SFAS No. 115”). Russian federal and municipal government securities are held primarily in the
PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund, an approximately 52% owned subsidiary of the Company. Security
transactions are recorded on settlement date. Investments are valued at the weighted average daily price if they
are traded on valuation date; otherwise, the bid price is used. Set forth in the following tables are the balances of
marketable securities, segregated between United States Treasury obligations and Russian obligations at
December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003. Unrealized gains and losses recorded on Russian government
securities are presented for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002.

Balances of Current Marketable Securities

December 31, December 31,
2003

2004
(in thousands)
Russia (trading) . .......ccoiiiiiiiiiii it $ 9,883 $10,160
United States (held tomaturity) ..........coiiiiiini i enaan. 7,573 6,057
Total Marketable SecUrities . .. ...ttt $17.456 $16,217

Unrealized Gains (Losses) on Russian Federal and Municipal Government Securities

Twelve months ended December 31,

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Gross Unrealized Gains . .. ...ovvrnin ittt e $524 $1,109 §$ 548
Gross Unrealized LoSSes ..........oitiiiiriin i itiininenannns (643) 31 (154
Net Unrealized (Losses) Galns . ..........oviiireneeenneinnnnnnn. $(119) $1,078 $394

Net realized gains on investments for the twelve months ended December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002 were
approximately $360,000, $606,000 and $390,000, respectively.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of held to maturity investments by contractual maturities for the
years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
(in thousands)
MaturinginLessthan 1 Year .............coovvovnn. $7,573  $7,545 $4,553  $4,821
Maturing between 1-3 Years ........oveieiiiin,. . — — 1,504 1,232
Total .o e $7,573 $7,545 $6,057 $6,053
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Long-Term Marketable Securities

Long-term Marketable Securities consist primarily of Russian equity and fixed income securities, including
Russian corporate bonds held in the portfolio of the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund. In addition,
certain subsidiaries of the Company maintain investments in the unit funds managed by Closed Joint-Stock
Company “PIOGLOBAL Asset Management” (“PIOGLOBAL Asset Management”).

Equity securities, corporate bonds and investments in unit funds and trust management are classified as
available-for-sale and recorded at fair value pursuant to SFAS No. 115. In this regard, such securities are
recorded in long-term marketable securities based on quoted prices on the Russian Trading System. The cost of
securities sold is based on the weighted-average method. Dividend income received on investments is recognized
on a cash basis. Unrealized gains and unrealized losses for equity securities, corporate bonds and the unit fund
investments are recorded net of deferred taxes and minority interest in other comprehensive income.

Set forth in the following tables are the balances of long-term marketable securities at December 31, 2004
and December 31, 2003 as well as cumulative unrealized gains and losses, before deferred taxes and minority

interest, recorded in other comprehensive income at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003:

Balance of Long-term Marketable Securities Classified as Available for Sale

December 31, December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Equity Securities . ........ooiiit i e $13,333 $10,206
Corporate Bonds . ...... ...t e e 5,043 7,599
UnItFUNAS ..ottt e e e e 1,622 1,392
Total Marketable Securities . .......oii it i $19,998 $19,197

Cumulative Unrealized Gain and Loss Recorded in Other Comprehensive Income

December 31, December 31,
2004 2003

(in th(;usands)

Equity Securities
Gross Unrealized Gain .. ........... [P $7,276 $5,543
Gross Unrealized LOSS . . ..o vviv it it i i eeaan (115) 9
Net Unrealized Gain . .........oirinin i, $7,161 $5,534
Corporate Bonds
Gross Unrealized Gain .. .....cov vttt e ime i, $ 329 $ 394
Gross Unrealized Loss .. oot v et et et e et e e — e
Net Unrealized Gain ..., $ 329 $ 394
Unit Funds :
Gross Unrealized Gain . ..........ooviiieiiiiiaiinn.. $ 992 $ 789
Gross Unrealized LLoss . ...t e — —_
Net Unrealized Gain

..................................... $ 992 $ 789 -
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available for sale Russian corporate bonds by contractual

maturities for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003

Fair Fair
Cost Value Cost Value
(in thousands)
Maturing inLessthan 1 Year ......................... $2,126 $2,299 $§ 4 § 43
Maturing between 1-5 Years . ..., 2,588 2,744 7,200 7.557
Total .o e $4,714  $5,043 $7,204  $7,600

Long Term Investments

Long term investments consist of Russian equity securities that do not have readily determinable fair values.
These investments are stated at cost with adjustments for other than temporary impairment in the accompanying
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Building

The building represents an office building in Moscow, Russia, the Meridian Commercial Tower. The
Meridian Commercial Tower is carried at cost and is being depreciated on a straight-line basis over 40 years.
Building improvements are depreciated on a straight-line basis over either five or ten years.

Goodwill

As aresult of Pioglobal Omega, L.L.C.’s (“Pioglobal Omega”) acquisition of the International Finance
Corporation’s (“IFC”) 18.35% minority interest in Pioglobal First Russia in 2002, the Company recorded
goodwill of approximately $300,000. The Company acquired its Russian real estate management and investment
management operations in 1995 for approximately $20,000,000. At inception, the excess of the purchase price
over the estimated fair value of the assets approximated $2,858,000. The Company recorded goodwill
amortization expense of approximately $1,905,000 through December 31, 2001. On January 1, 2002, the
Company adopted SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets’ and no longer amortizes goodwill, but
rather tests for impairment annually at the reporting unit level.

Valuation of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, and accounts
payable. The Company considers available market quotations when estimating fair value of financial
instruments. Except for investments, the carrying values of the Company’s financial instruments approximate fair
value.

Marketable securities, which are recorded pursuant to SFAS No. 115, primarily consist of Russian equity
securities and Russian corporate bonds characterized as available-for-sale and recorded at fair value, foreign
government bonds characterized as trading and recorded at fair value, and United States treasury bills
characterized as held-to-maturity and recorded at cost.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the carrying value of the United States treasury bills, which are recorded
in cash and cash equivalents and short-term marketable securities was approximately $8,292,000 and $7,161,000,
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respectively. Based on available market quotations, the carrying value of the United States treasury bills at
December 31, 2004, exceeded their fair value by approximately $30,000, which is comprised of gross -
unrecognized holding losses of approximately $30,000. Based on available market quotations, the fair value of
the United States treasury bills at December 31, 2003 exceeded their carrying value by approximately $23,000,
which is comprised of gross unrecognized holding gains of approximately $30,000 and gross unrecognized
holding losses of approximately $7,000.

Foreign Currency Translation

Although the Company’s operations are conducted in Russia, the Company transacts the majority of its
business in Russia in United States dollars, and as a result, the functional currency used for the Company’s
Russian subsidiaries is currently the United States dollar. For those entities, the translation gains and losses that
result from remeasuring into the United States dollar for reporting purposes are included in the accompanying
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. For the year ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, net foreign currency
gains in the Consolidated Statement of Operations were approximately $918,000 and $639,000, respectively. Net
foreign currency losses in the Statement of Operations were approximately $371,000 in 2002.

Concentration of Risk

The Company’s operations are generally concentrated in Russia. The Company does not maintain political
risk insurance for any of its businesses.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 2002 and 2003 amounts to conform to the 2004 presentation.

(3) CONCENTRATION OF REVENUES

A significant portion of the Company’s revenues are concentrated in the PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund and consist of rental revenues earned from its principal asset, Meridian Commercial Tower.
Rental revenues were approximately 64%, 70% and 79% of total revenues in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002,
respectively.

(4) EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

Basic earnings (loss) per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing reported earnings by weighted average
shares outstanding. There are currently no potentially dilutive securities. \

(5) BUILDING

The cost and the accumulated depreciation for the building are as follows:

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Building Cost . ... ..ot e $26,709  $26,709
Building Improvements . .. ....... ... i e 389 —
Accumulated Depreciation . ... .. ...ttt i i e e (45,372) {4,674)

821,726 $22,035
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(6) FIXED ASSETS

Furniture and fixtures are classified as other long term assets. The cost and accumulated depreciation for
furniture and fixtures are as follows:

2004 2003
(in thousands)
Furniture and FIXHTUTES . . . . oottt ettt e e e e e e e $1,670 $1,358
Accumulated Depreciation ..............c.o i e (755) (594)
$ 915 §$ 764

Furniture and fixtures are depreciated on a straight-line basis over five years. Depreciation expense was
approximately $173,000, $168,000, and $92,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

(7) NOTE RECEIVABLE AND NOTE PAYABLE

In May 2000, Goldfields II sold its gold mining operations in Ghana to Ashanti Goldfields Teberebie
Limited (“Ashanti”) for an $18,800,000 base purchase price plus additional payments of up to $5,000,000,
contingent upon the market price of gold and productivity of the Ghanaian gold mine (the “Purchase
Agreement”). On June 19, 2000, $5,000,000 of the base purchase price was paid to Goldfields II in cash and
$13,800,000 of the base purchase price was paid in the form of a non-interest bearing promissory note.

Effective March 19, 2003, Goldfields II and Ashanti executed an amendment to the Purchase Agreement.
Pursuant to the amendment, Ashanti agreed to release Goldfields II from its obligation to indemnify Ashanti for
breach of representations and warranties relating to tax and environmental matters contained in the Purchase
Agreement in exchange for a $1,100,000 reduction in the amount remaining due from Ashanti to Goldfields IT
under the Purchase Agreement and related promissory note. Accordingly, under the amended Purchase
Agreement and related promissory note, Ashanti made a final payment to the Company in the amount of
$4,700,000 during the first quarter of 2004 and has paid the Company $12,700,000 due under the promissory
note. The Company adjusted the carrying value of the note receivable during the first quarter of 2003 by
approximately $191,000 as a result of the amendment. The Company recorded the adjustment in other income
(expense) in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

In connection with the release of Goldfields II from its indemnification obligations to Ashanti, Pioneer and
the Company entered into an amendment to the Distribution Agreement. Under the Distribution Agreement, the
Company was previously obligated to return to Pioneer, in 2005, the lesser of $5,000,000 or the actual proceeds
received by Goldfields IT from Ashanti under the Purchase Agreement less any indemnification claims paid
under the Purchase Agreement. Pursuant to the amendment, Pioneer agreed to accept $3,750,000 in satisfaction
of the foregoing obligation, if the amount was paid on or before March 31, 2003. The Company paid $3,750,000
to Pioneer on March 20, 2003. As a result of the foregoing reduction in, and satisfaction of, the note payable to
Pioneer, the Company recorded a gain of $1,250,000 during the first quarter of 2003, which is reflected in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations as a component of other income (expense).

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Ashanti agreed to pay Goldfields IT additional supplemental payments
of $250,000 per calendar quarter from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2006, contingent on the market price of
gold and productivity of the Ghanaian gold mine. The Company earned its first supplemental payment of
$250,000 for the quarter ending March 31, 2003. On April 25, 2003, Goldfields II agreed to sell its right to
receive the remaining twelve (12) additional supplemental payments from Ashanti to HSBC Bank in exchange
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for one cash payment of $875,000. The transaction was consummated on April 30, 2003 and, as a result, the
Company recorded a gain of $875,000 in the second quarter of 2003, which is reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations as a component of other income (expense).

(8) DIVIDEND PAYABLE

The dividend payable of approximately $13,035,000 and approximately $6,291,000 at December 31, 2004
and December 31, 2003, respectively, represents a payable to minority shareholders of PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund. Approximately $13,035,000 and approximately $6,291,000 has been set aside by
PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund as of December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003, respectively, to
satisfy this liability and is classified as restricted cash.

(9) OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses consist of the following:

December 31,
2004 2003 2002

(in thousands)
INSUGANCE .. ..ottt e $ 630 $ 591 $ 517
Other TaXeS oottt e e e 2,389 1,571 1,535
Professional Services .......... . e 930 920 1,349
Advertising Expense ......... .. i 1,595 965 973
Selling EXpense .. ...ttt ittt e 789 - 668 762
Realized (Gains) Losses on Foreign Currency Transactions and .

Translation (Gains) Losses . .. ...t (918) (639) 371
Telephone and Data Processing . ................. oo, 214 224 182
Directors Fees . .. ... i 174 199 144
Travel, Subscriptions,andDues . ........ ... ... ... ... o 142 109 133
Other . .. e 306 228 538

Total Other EXpenses .. ......c.uueuirriiiinneeneenneen. $6,251 $4,836  $6,504

(10) - INCOME TAXES

The results of operations of certain subsidiaries of the Company prior to the Spin-off were included in the
United States federal consolidated tax returns of Pioneer. In the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements,
the provision for income taxes includes a provision for its subsidiary operations calculated on the separate-return
basis in accordance with the requirements of SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes”. The separate return
method allocates current and deferred taxes to members of a group by applying the provisions of SFAS No. 109
to each member as if it were a separate taxpayer.

The following is a summary of the components of income (loss) from continuing operations before
provision for income taxes and minority interest for financial reporting purposes:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
DOMIESHC oot i ettt $(1,548) $(1,202) $ (847)
07 (=3 ¥ « PP 575 25,049 9,725

$ (973) $23,847 $8,878
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The Company is a Bermuda limited duration company and is not subject to taxation in Bermuda. The
components of the provision for income taxes on continuing operations consist of:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Current Foreign ......... ..ttt $ 632 $6,034 $3,542
Deferred Foreign ...t 241 376 324
Current DOmMEStIC . ...t 1,049 60 —

$1,922 $6470  $3,866

Because of its classification as a partnership for United States federal income tax purposes, Harbor Global
itself is not subject to United States federal income tax and hence the effective tax rate is zero. However, on
April 12, 2004 Pioglobal First Russia converted from a Delaware corporation into a Delaware limited liability
company. As a result, the Company anticipates that it will indirectly incur a United Stated federal income tax
liability of approximately $1,049,000, which is reported in the provision for income taxes in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. Otherwise, the income tax provisions and the deferred taxes included in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements relate primarily to the Company’s corporate subsidiaries that
are located in Russia. The Company’s venture capital investments held in Poland are primarily conducted
through partnerships that are not taxable.

The tax effects of significant temporary differences are as follows:

2004 2003
(in thousands)

Non-Current Deferred Tax ASSEt ...\ viit i $ 347 § 337
Less Valuation Allowance ...t it 347) (337)
Net Non-Current Deferred Tax Asset . ...t ieann. —_ —
Current Deferred Tax Liability on Net Unrealized Gains on Short Term

Marketable Securities ... ...... ...t e e e $ 241 376
Non-Current Deferred Tax Liability on Net Unrealized Gains on Long term

Marketable Securities .. ....... .ttt e e 2,039 1,613
Net Deferred Tax Liability ...........iiiiiiiriniii i $2,280 $1,989

The non-current deferred tax asset arises primarily from the difference between book and tax depreciation of
the Meridian Commercial Tower. Due to market uncertainties inherent in operating in Russia, a valuation
allowance has been established equal to the value of the non-current deferred tax asset.

(11) MINORITY INTEREST

The Company’s minority interest liability includes the interests of the other equity holders of PIOGLOBAL
Real Estate Investment Fund, an approximate 52% owned subsidiary of the Company. The liability is recorded
based on the net book value at the balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company’s
minority interest liability in PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund was approximately $27,109,000 and
$32,453,000, respectively.
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(12) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On July 10, 2003, the Company entered into an amended and restated administration and liquidation
agreement with Calypso Management, pursuant to which Calypso Management manages the liquidation of the
Company and operates the Company’s assets pending their liquidation. Calypso Management is owned and
operated by Stephen G. Kasnet, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Donald H. Hunter, the Company’s
Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Kasnet is Calypso Management’s President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr.
Hunter is Calypso Management’s Chief Operating Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Calypso Management
performs its services pursuant to operating plans and budgets approved by the Harbor Global Board of Directors
in accordance with the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.

The amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement provides that the Company pays the
operating expenses of Calypso Management incurred in connection with the provision of services to the Company.

In addition, as compensation for its provision of services to the Company, Calypso Management receives a
portion of the total net proceeds distributed from the liquidation of the Company’s assets, generally according to
the following schedule:

— with respect to the first $36 million in net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive
a payment equal to 10% of such net proceeds;

— with respect to the next $72 million in net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive
a payment equal to 7.5% of such net proceeds; and

— with respect to any additional net proceeds to be distributed, Calypso Management shall receive a
payment equal to 10% of such net proceeds.

Net proceeds do not include any unexpended portion of the approximate $19,100,000 contributed by
Pioneer to Harbor Global at the time of the Spin-off. However, because Harbor Global entered into a transaction
in which it was released from its indirect obligation to fulfill its existing capital commitment of approximately
$5.4 million to the Polish Real Estate Fund, $5.4 million of the amount contributed by Pioneer is included in the
calculation of net proceeds. In addition, the proceeds received by Goldfields II in connection with the sale of its
Ghanaian gold mine to Ashanti are not subject to the preceding fee schedule. Instead, Calypso Management will
receive only 5% of the Ashanti proceeds that are distributed to shareholders.

In addition, if an individual, entity or group acquires at least 80% of the Company’s outstanding common
shares or Harbor Global is a party to a merger, reorganization or similar business combination and the
shareholders immediately prior to such transaction cease to own at least 50% of the outstanding common shares
and voting power entitled to vote generally in the election of directors of the resulting entity (a “Deemed Sale”),
Calypso Management is entitled to receive a portion of the consideration, in accordance with the compensation
schedule described above, as would be received by all shareholders if all of the outstanding common shares were
sold at the valuation of Harbor Global based on the per share consideration received by each shareholder who
sold, exchanged or otherwise disposed of shares in the transaction. Also, in the event of a change in control (as
defined in the agreement) coupled with a material change in the engagement status of Calypso Management or
the employment status of its principal officers, Calypso Management will be paid a cash amount equal to a
portion of the value of the underlying assets, in accordance with the compensation schedule described above,
with such value determined pursuant to a predetermined valuation schedule.

With respect to ongoing asset sales, Harbor Global accrues management fees at the earlier of (1) the formal
declaration by the Board of Directors of a distribution and (2) the time when a distributable amount is estimable
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following the sale or liquidation of an asset. Harbor Global will aiso accrue management fees when a distribution
to Calypso Management is triggered following a Deemed Sale of the Company or a change in control as defined
in the amended and restated administration and liquidation agreement.

The Company incurred management fee expenses of approximately $2,573,000, $2,548,000 and $2,796,000
during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively related to the reimbursement of expenses. Of this management fee,
approximately $739,000 and $708,000 was outstanding at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

During 2004, the Company incurred additional management fee expense of approximately $334,000 in
connection with the distribution paid to shareholders on November 15, 2004. During 2003, the Company
incurred additional management fee expense of approximately $583,000 in connection with the distribution paid
to shareholders on June 27, 2003.

On October 24, 2004, 2003, and 2002, the Company issued 1,500 shares of its common stock to each of its
directors pursuant to, and in accordance with, the Company’s Amended and Restated Non-Employee Director
Share Plan. As a result the Company recorded a compensation charge to the Consolidated Statement of
Operations of approximately $59,000, $59,000 and $44,000 for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Pursuant to the plan, on each anniversary of October 24, 2000, the Spin-Off date, each
director of the Company who is not an employee will be granted and issued 1,500 fully vested common shares in
consideration of each non-employee director’s future service as a director.

Calypso Management pays the rent on behalf of the Company for its offices at One Faneuil Hall Marketplace,
Boston, Massachusetts and is reimbursed by the Company pursuant to the administration and liquidation agreement.

PREA leases the Meridian Commercial Tower from PIOGLOBAL Real Estate Investment Fund under a
master lease agreement and in turn, subleases the premises to tenants. PREA pays PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund an amount equal to gross revenues less building operating expenses, the PREA property
management fee and any value added taxes or similar taxes. The master lease agreement between PIOGLOBAL
Real Estate Investment Fund and PREA expires in 2021.

Under a management agreement between PIOGLOBAL Asset Management and PIOGLOBAL Real Estate
Investment Fund, PIOGLOBAL Asset Management provides portfolio management services to PIOGLOBAL
Real Estate Investment Fund for an annual fee of 5% of assets net of any value added taxes or similar taxes.

(13) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating lease expenses were approximately $748,000, $823,000, and $610,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The table below provides information about future operating
lease commitments having initial or remaining non cancelable terms in excess of one year.

Year Ending December 31,

20005 e $ 639,771
2006 . o e e 429,949
2007 o e 113,000
200 . 49,610
2000 . o e e 49,610
Beyond ... e 49,610

$1,331,550
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The Company and its subsidiaries conduct their principal operations from leased premises with
approximately 3,497 square feet at One Faneuil Hall Marketplace, Boston, Massachusetts. The lease commenced
on November 15, 2000 at a rate of $160,862 per year and will expire on October 24, 2005. The Company has the
right to renew its lease for three one year periods at an annual rental rate for such renewal terms of no less than
$160,862 per year, subject to increase to a maximum of the then current market rental rate for such premises,
plus the Company’s pro rata share of any increase in operating expenses and real estate taxes for the premises.

(14) RESTRICTED UNIT AWARD

Effective September 24, 2003, Pioglobal First Russia awarded restricted units in an aggregate amount
equivalent to ten percent of the issued and outstanding shares of Pioglobal First Russia to two officers of
Pioglobal First Russia’s wholly owned subsidiary, Closed Joint-Stock Company “PIOGLOBAL Asset
Management” (“PIOGLOBAL Asset Management”). Each officer was fully vested with respect to the award. For
the year ended December 31, 2003, Pioglobal First Russia recorded compensation expense of $541,000 in
connection with the restricted stock awards. On of April 15, 2004, Pioglobal First Russia repurchased all of the
membership interest of one of the officers who resigned from PIOGLOBAL Asset Management for $308,500.
These amounts are included in “salary and benefit expenses” on the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

Effective May 19, 2004, Pioglobal First Russia granted restricted units in Pioglobal First Russia to three
officers of PIOGLOBAL Asset Management. Under the unit agreements, Pioglobal First Russia awarded, at no
cost to the officers, an aggregate number of units equivalent to approximately 4% of the issued and outstanding
units of Pioglobal First Russia, on a fully diluted basis. Upon the full vesting of these awards, the Company will
continue to own approximately 91% of the outstanding units in Pioglobal First Russia. Such units are required to
be issued over a period of three years beginning on May 19, 2004 and ending on December 31, 2006, according
to the schedules set forth in the respective unit agreements, if the respective officer continues to be employed by
PIOGLOBAL Asset Management as a full-time employee. As of December 31, 2004, 3% of such restricted units
had fully vested. The fair value of the units issued during 2003 and 2004 were calculated using the valuation
services of an independent third party as of December 31, 2004. Accordingly, Pioglobal First Russia recorded
compensation expense of approximately $169,000 in connection with the valuation of the restricted unit awards.
This amount is included in salary and benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

(15) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On February 5, 2002, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the disposition of the Russian timber
operation. Accordingly, the Russian timber operation was separated from the results of continuing operations and
was reported as a discontinued operation commencing in 2001. Pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion
No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations-Reporting the Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and
Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions” (“APB No. 30”), the Company -
recorded the disposal effective December 31, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS No. 144 “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long Lived Assets” (“SFAS No. 144”), effective January 1, 2002, which supersedes
APB No. 30. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 did not have material impact on the Company’s financial
statements. Prior to 2001, the Company reported its Russian timber operations as a separate segment.

On April 22, 2002, Harbor Global’s wholly owned subsidiary, Pioneer Forest, Inc. (“Pioneer Forest™),
entered into an agreement for the sale of its Russian timber business conducted through Closed Joint-Stock
Company “Forest-Starma” (“Forest-Starma’). On May 28, 2002, Pioneer Forest sold its entire interest in
Pioglobal Forest, L.L.C. (“Pioglobal Forest”), the sole shareholder of Forest-Starma, to a British Virgin Islands
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company for an aggregate purchase price of $7,550,000, of which $5,550,000 was paid in cash at the closing and
$2,000,000 was paid in the form of a one-year promissory note. The remaining $2,000,000 was received, and the
promissory note paid in full, on June 3, 2003.

For the year ended December 31, 2002, the Company recorded a gain of approximately $424,000 on the
disposal of the Russian timber operations.

(16) INDEMNIFICATION CONTRACTS

Under the Distribution Agreement, Harbor Global agreed to indemnify Pioneer for liabilities, other than tax
liabilities, incurred by Pioneer relating to the businesses or operations of the Harbor Global assets. Additionally,
under a tax separation agreement between Harbor Global and Pioneer, generally, Harbor Global agreed to
indemnify Pioneer for tax liabilities relating to the Harbor Global businesses. Currently, there are no suits
pending that would require payment by Harbor Global to Pioneer under the indemnification provisions of the
Distribution Agreement or tax separation agreement.

(17) FINANCIAL INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”,
the Company presents its segment information for continuing operations using the management approach. The
management approach is based on the way that management organizes the segments within a company for
making operating decisions and assessing performance. The Company’s operating segments are organized
around services and products provided, as well as geographic regions.

Previously the Company reported its Russian timber operations as a separate segment. Due to the sale of the
Russian timber operations segment, these results have been segregated from continuing operations. The segment
disclosures previously reported have been restated to reflect the Company’s continuing segments.

The Company derives its revenues from the following products and services by segment:

* Russian Real Estate Management and Investment Management Operations: investment advisory and
management services

* Real Estate Management Operations: real estate management services including property management
and advisory services

¢ Other
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SEGMENT DISCLOSURES
Russian Real
Estate
I Management
U and
. Investment Real Estate
— Management Management :
o Operations Operations Other Total
. In Thousands as of and for the year ended December 31, 2004
~ NetRevenuesand Sales ...........ovivieinnn.. $11,255 -~ $1,064° - 0§ = """ $12,319
— (Loss) Income before Income Taxes, Minority S Ce e e :
Interest and Equity Loss on Investments ....... - (406) 765 - 198 973)
INcome TaXes .. oviit ittt et et e (1,923) 11 10) (1,922)
Minority Interest Expense . .......... ..o, (1,269) — —_ (1,269)
Equity Gainon Investment ........................ — — 156 156
Net(Loss)Income ...............cccivvinn.. $(3,598) $ (754) $ 344 $(4,008)
Depreciation and Amortization .................... $(1,018) $ 24 $ — $(1,042)
Total ASSets .....cvtiii e $82,623 $1,411 $10,239 $94,273
i ENTERPRISE-WIDE DISCLOSURES
(in thousands)
2004
. Revenues from External Customers—
— RUSSIA .+ vttt ettt et e e e e e $12,319
L 1172 S —
o 171 $12,319
o Fixed Assets and Other Assets
RUSSIA . oot e i e e e e e e e $22,868
£ 11+ 7= (AP 273
o1 $23,141
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SEGMENT DISCLOSURES
Russian Real
Estate
Management
and
Investment Real Estate
Management Management
Operations Operations Other Total
In Thousands as of and for the year ended December 31, 2003
NetRevenuesand Sales ...........ccovenvnnin... $ 9,151 $1,300 $ 250 $ 10,701
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes, Minority
Interest and Equity Loss on Investments . ....... 21,748 (412) 2,511 23,847
IncomeTaxes .............ccoviiiiiiininnnnnnnn, (6,410) (60} — (6,470)
Minority Interest Expense ............... o ooen... (9,386) — —_ (9,386)
Equity Loss on Investment ........................ — — (154) (154)
NetIncome (LOSS) .o vvv i tie i $ 5,952 $ (472) $2,357 $ 7,837
Depreciation and Amortization ..................... $ (922) $ (26) $ — $ (948
Total ASSEIS .. i vve ittt e e e $91,188 $1,481 $7,892 $100,561

ENTERPRISE-WIDE DISCLOSURES
(in thousands)

2003
Revenues from External Customers—
RUSSIA . it e e e e e e
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SEGMENT DISCLOSURES
Russian Real
Estate
Management
and
Investment Real Estate
Management Management '
Operations Operations Other Total
B In Thousands as of and for the year ended December 31, 2002
NetRevenuesand Sales .. ............coviviirinnnnnn.. $ 8,606 $1,165 $§ —  $9771
Income (Loss) before Income Taxes, Minority Interest
and Equity Loss on Investments .................. 7,656 (695) 1,917 8,878
Income Taxes ......cocvienveiiennivinnnn. [ (3,861) (5) — (3,866)
Minority Interest Expense .............. .. ... (3,938) — — (3,938)
Equity Losson Investment . ............................ — — {415) (415)
Net (Loss) Income from Continuing Operations . ....... $ (143) $ (700) $ 1,502 $ 659
Depreciation and Amortization .................c.ccuuien. $ (959 $ (35 5 — $ (994) 7
Total ASSELS .\ vttt i e e e e $74,023 $ 649 $23,993 $98,665
ENTERPRISE-WIDE DISCLOSURES
(in thousands)
2002
Revenues from External Customers— ‘
RUSSIA o vttt et et et e e e e e e e e e $ 9,771
10117 O —
0 -1 e $ 9,771
Fixed Assets and Other Assets
ST Y At $24,838
L 41T 820
7Y GO $25,658

(18) SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (unauditéd)
Summarized quarterly financial data is presented below.

Year Ended December 31, 2004
1st Qtr. 2nd Qtr. 3rd Qtr.  4th Qtr.
(In Thousands Except Per Share Data)

NetRevenuesand Sales ... ....oviin i iiinans $3,294 $ 2,838 $ 2,653 $3,534
Net (Loss)INcome ...ttt (609) (2,782) (1,233) 616
Basic and Diluted (Loss) Earnings per Share:

(Loss) Earningsper Share .............ovvvurenvnnnen.. $0.11) $ (049 $(0.22) $0.11

Year Ended December 31, 2003
IstQtr. 2ndQtr. 3rdQtr.  4th Qtr.
(In Thousands Except Per Share Data)

NetRevenuesand Sales ... ...t iriinnininnnn. $2,510 $ 2,391 $ 2,624 $3,176
Net Income (LOSS) & v vvvietinit e iineeeieeran s 1,795 2,727 (560) 3,875
Basic and Diluted Earnings (Loss) per Share:

Earnings (Loss)perShare ..............ccoviueeveinnn.. $032 ¢ 048 $(0.10) $ 0.69
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